
 

 

 
 
 
 

Audit and Standards 
Committee 
 
Thursday 12 January 2017 at 5.00 pm 
 
To be held at the Town Hall, Pinstone 
Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH 

 
The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Membership 
  

Councillors Josie Paszek (Chair), Dianne Hurst, Alan Law, Pat Midgley, Peter Price, 
Vickie Priestley (Deputy Chair) and Paul Scriven. 
 
Independent Co-opted Members 
 
Liz Stanley. 
 

  

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE MEETING 

 
The Audit and Standards Committee oversees and assesses the Council’s risk 
management, control and corporate governance arrangements and advises the Council on 
the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements. The Committee has delegated 
powers to approve the Council’s Statement of Accounts and consider the Annual Letter from 
the External Auditor.  
 
The Committee is also responsible for promoting high standards of conduct by Councillors 
and co-opted members. 
 
A copy of the agenda and reports is available on the Council’s website at 
http://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk. You can also see the reports to be discussed at the 
meeting if you call at the First Point Reception, Town Hall, Pinstone Street entrance.  The 
Reception is open between 9.00 am and 5.00 pm, Monday to Thursday and between 9.00 
am and 4.45 pm. on Friday.  You may not be allowed to see some reports because they 
contain confidential information. 
 
Recording is allowed at meetings of the Committee under the direction of the Chair of the 
meeting.  Please see the website or contact Democratic Services for details of the Council’s 
protocol on audio/visual recording and photography at council meetings. 
 
If you require any further information please contact Dave Ross in Democratic Services on 
0114 273 5033 or email dave.ross@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 
 

FACILITIES 

 
There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the Town 
Hall.  Induction loop facilities are available in meeting rooms. 
 
Access for people with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the side to 
the main Town Hall entrance. 
 



 

 

 

AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE AGENDA 
12 JANUARY 2017 

 
Order of Business 

 

1. Welcome and Housekeeping Arrangements  

2. Apologies for Absence  

3. Exclusion of the Press and Public  

 To identify items where resolutions may be moved to exclude the 
press and public. 
 

 

4. Declarations of Interest (Pages 1 - 4) 

 Members to declare any interests they have in the business to be 
considered at the meeting. 
 

 

5. Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 10) 

 To approve the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 
16 November 2016. 
 

 

6. Progress on High Opinion Audit Reports (Pages 11 - 54) 

 Report of the Senior Finance Manager, Internal Audit. 
 

 

7. Standards Complaints Update (Pages 55 - 66) 

 Report of the Director of Legal and Governance. 
 

 

8. Review of the Procedure for Dealing with Standards 
Complaints 

(Pages 67 - 82) 

 Report of the Director of Legal and Governance. 
 

 

9. Review of the Members' Code of Conduct (Pages 83 - 92) 

 Report of the Director of Legal and Governance. 
 

 

10. Work Programme (Pages 93 - 96) 

 Report of the Director of Legal and Governance. 
 

 

11. Dates of Future Meetings  

 To note that meetings of the Committee will be held at 5.00 p.m. 
on:- 
 

• 16 February 2017 (additional meeting if required) 

• 9 March 2017 (additional meeting if required) 

• 27 April 2017 

• 13 July 2017 
 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 

 
If you are present at a meeting of the Council, of its executive or any committee of 
the executive, or of any committee, sub-committee, joint committee, or joint sub-
committee of the authority, and you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) 
relating to any business that will be considered at the meeting, you must not:  
 

• participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you become 
aware of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the meeting, participate 
further in any discussion of the business, or  

• participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting.  

These prohibitions apply to any form of participation, including speaking as a 
member of the public. 

You must: 
 

• leave the room (in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct) 

• make a verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any DPI at any 
meeting at which you are present at which an item of business which affects or 
relates to the subject matter of that interest is under consideration, at or before 
the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest becomes 
apparent. 

• declare it to the meeting and notify the Council’s Monitoring Officer within 28 
days, if the DPI is not already registered. 

 
If you have any of the following pecuniary interests, they are your disclosable 
pecuniary interests under the new national rules. You have a pecuniary interest if 
you, or your spouse or civil partner, have a pecuniary interest.  
 

• Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain, 
which you, or your spouse or civil partner undertakes. 
 

• Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from your 
council or authority) made or provided within the relevant period* in respect of 
any expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards 
your election expenses. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a 
trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  
 
*The relevant period is the 12 months ending on the day when you tell the 
Monitoring Officer about your disclosable pecuniary interests. 

 

• Any contract which is made between you, or your spouse or your civil partner (or 
a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial 
interest) and your council or authority –  
 
- under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed; and  

- which has not been fully discharged. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



 

 

• Any beneficial interest in land which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, 
have and which is within the area of your council or authority. 

 

• Any licence (alone or jointly with others) which you, or your spouse or your civil 
partner, holds to occupy land in the area of your council or authority for a month 
or longer. 
 

• Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) – 
- the landlord is your council or authority; and  
- the tenant is a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a 
beneficial interest. 

 

• Any beneficial interest which you, or your spouse or your civil partner has in 
securities of a body where -  

 

(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of 
your council or authority; and  
 

(b) either - 
- the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or  

- if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class in which you, or your spouse or your 
civil partner, has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

If you attend a meeting at which any item of business is to be considered and you 
are aware that you have a personal interest in the matter which does not amount to 
a DPI, you must make verbal declaration of the existence and nature of that interest 
at or before the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest 
becomes apparent. You should leave the room if your continued presence is 
incompatible with the 7 Principles of Public Life (selflessness; integrity; objectivity; 
accountability; openness; honesty; and leadership).  

You have a personal interest where – 

• a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting 
the well-being or financial standing (including interests in land and easements 
over land) of you or a member of your family or a person or an organisation with 
whom you have a close association to a greater extent than it would affect the 
majority of the Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward or 
electoral area for which you have been elected or otherwise of the Authority’s 
administrative area, or 
 

• it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests that are defined as DPIs but 
are in respect of a member of your family (other than a partner) or a person with 
whom you have a close association. 

 

Page 2



 

Guidance on declarations of interest, incorporating regulations published by the 
Government in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, has been circulated to 
you previously. 
 
You should identify any potential interest you may have relating to business to be 
considered at the meeting. This will help you and anyone that you ask for advice to 
fully consider all the circumstances before deciding what action you should take. 
 
In certain circumstances the Council may grant a dispensation to permit a Member 
to take part in the business of the Authority even if the member has a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest relating to that business.  

To obtain a dispensation, you must write to the Monitoring Officer at least 48 hours 
before the meeting in question, explaining why a dispensation is sought and 
desirable, and specifying the period of time for which it is sought.  The Monitoring 
Officer may consult with the Independent Person or the Council’s Audit and 
Standards Committee in relation to a request for dispensation. 

Further advice can be obtained from Gillian Duckworth, Director of Legal and 
Governance on 0114 2734018 or email gillian.duckworth@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



S H E F F I E L D    C I T Y     C O U N C I L 
 

Audit and Standards Committee 
 

Meeting held 16 November 2016 
 
PRESENT: Councillors Josie Paszek (Chair), Alan Law, Pat Midgley and  

Peter Price 
 

 Co-opted Independent Member 
 Liz Stanley 
  
 Representative of KPMG 
 Alison Ormston (Senior Manager) 
  
 Council Officers 
 Eugene Walker (Acting Executive Director, Resources) 

Gillian Duckworth (Director of Legal and Governance) 
Dave Phillips (Head of Strategic Finance) 
Kayleigh Inman (Senior Finance Manager, Internal Audit) 
Lynsey Linton (Head of Human Resources) 
Andrew Fellows (Customer Services Manager) 
Richard Garrad (Corporate Risk Manager) 
Dave Ross (Principal Committee Secretary) 

  
 
   

 
1.  
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

1.1 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Dianne Hurst and Vickie 
Priestley. 

 
2.  
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

2.1 Councillor Pat Midgley declared a general personal interest in the items on the 
agenda as a Council-appointed Director of the Manor and Castle Development 
Trust. 

  
2.2 Alison Ormston, Senior Finance Manager, KPMG, declared an interest in the item 

on the Changes to the Arrangements for the Appointment of External Auditors due 
to a potential conflict of interest and indicated that she would leave the meeting 
when that item was considered. 

 
3.  
 

APPOINTMENT OF DEPUTY CHAIR 
 

3.1 Resolved: That Councillor Vickie Priestley be appointed as Deputy Chair of the 
Committee for 2016/17. 

 
4.  
 

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

4.1 The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 15 September 2016 were 
approved as a correct record. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 5



Meeting of the Audit and Standards Committee 16.11.2016 

 
5.  
 

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY 
 

5.1 Lynsey Linton, Head of Human Resources, introduced a report that indicated that 
the Council has a Whistleblowing Policy to enable employees to raise matters of 
concern that are in the public interest so that they may be investigated and, 
where appropriate, acted upon. The current Policy was adopted by the Council in 
October 2012 and it had been redesigned, refreshed and updated to simplify and 
aid understanding for the individual raising a concern and to clarify who should 
respond to that concern and how it is processed. The revised Policy was 
attached as an appendix to the report. 

  
5.2 Members and officers made a number of suggested amendments to the 

Whistleblowing Policy, including the deletion of the reference to the Audit 
Commission, the inclusion of timescales and the amendment to the Interim 
Director of Finance’s job title. 

  
5.3 Resolved: That:- 
  
 (a) the revised Whistleblowing Policy appended to the report now submitted is 

approved with the inclusion of timescales, the deletion of the reference to 
the Audit Commission and the amendment of the Interim Director of 
Finance’s job title to read Head of Strategic Finance; and 

   
 (b) arrangements be made for the Constitution to be amended accordingly. 
 
6.  
 

ANNUAL OMBUDSMAN AND COMPLAINTS REPORT 2015/16 
 

6.1 The Committee considered a joint report of the Directors of Human Resources 
and Legal and Governance that provided an overview of the complaints received 
and formally referred and determined by the three Ombudsmen (Local 
Government, Parliamentary and Health Service and Housing) during the period 
from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 regarding services provided by the Council, 
both directly and through partners. The report also identified future developments 
and areas for improvement in complaint management. 

  

6.2 In presenting the report, Andrew Fellows, Customer Services Manager, referred to 
dealing with Ombudsman complaints in a timely manner, the Government’s 
intention to create a single Public Service Ombudsman and improvements to 
complaint recording that were being considered. He also highlighted the areas for 
improvement that had been identified in the way that complaints are generally 
managed and these related to reviewing how learning from complaints can be 
improved, carrying out communications with key stakeholders to improve 
awareness of complaints processes and trends and investigating how to improve 
the visibility of complaints resolved through problem solving. 

  

6.3 In response to questions from Members of the Committee, the Customer Services 
Manager indicated that:- 

  
 • There would be move from a more bureaucratic system to recording details 

Page 6



Meeting of the Audit and Standards Committee 16.11.2016 

within the service and these would feed into service improvements. 
  

 • In terms of how Sheffield compared to similar sized authorities, the only 
comparator was on Ombudsman complaints with the Core Cities Group. 
Sheffield was not out of step with the national picture, where complaints 
relating to Adult Social Care featured highly. 

  

 • With regard to the increase in the number of complaints relating to Amey, 
four year data or in year statistics were not available and officers were 
working with the client to improve the level of visibility. 

  

6.4 Resolved: The Committee accepts the report on the performance of Ombudsman 
complaints and notes the issues raised. 

 
7.  
 

RECOMMENDATION TRACKING PROCESS 
 

7.1 As requested at the last meeting of the Committee, Kayleigh Inman, Senior 
Finance Manager, Internal Audit, submitted a report that summarised the process 
applied by Internal Audit to follow-up on the implementation of agreed audit 
recommendations. The responsibility for implementation and monitoring lay with 
the service managers/identified responsible officers and not with Internal Audit. 

  
7.2 Resolved: That the contents of the report now submitted be noted. 
 
8.  
 

ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2015/16 
 

8.1 Alison Ormston, Senior Manager, KPMG, introduced the Annual Audit Letter that 
summarised the outcome from their audit work at the Council for 2015/16. The 
Letter would also be published on the Council’s website. 

  
8.2 Resolved: That the Committee notes the contents of the External Auditor’s 

Annual Audit Letter 2015/16. 
 
9.  
 

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

9.1 Resolved: That the public and press be excluded from the meeting before 
discussion takes place on the following item of business on Strategic Risk 
Management on the grounds that, if the public and press were present during the 
transaction of such business, there would be a disclosure to them of exempt 
information as described in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act 1972, as amended. 

 
10.  
 

STRATEGIC RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

10.1 Richard Garrad, Corporate Risk Manager, submitted a report and gave a 
presentation on the effectiveness of the Council’s risk management 
arrangements from July 2015 to June 2016 and that assessed:- 

  
 • The Council’s current Risk Management arrangements and the measures 

being implemented to further strengthen and improve those arrangements; 

Page 7



Meeting of the Audit and Standards Committee 16.11.2016 

and 
  
 • The current and emerging risks to delivery of the Council’s strategic 

objectives and the controls in place to manage those risks. 
  
10.2 He explained that there had been an improvement from Amber to a Green rating 

(processes functioning effectively and requires no intervention at this time) and a 
sustained downward trend in levels of residual risk was now being achieved. He 
also referred to the significant improvements that had been introduced, including 
a simplified risk management framework and areas where risk management had 
achieved operational improvements. 

  
10.3 The Corporate Risk Manager and Acting Executive Director, Resources 

responded to questions from Members of the Committee on employee morale 
and the effectiveness of partnership working. 

  
10.4 Resolved: That the Committee:- 
  
 (a) notes the current assessment of the Council’s Risk Management 

arrangements and endorses the measures being taken to strengthen those 
arrangements; 

   
 (b) notes the improving trend in the management of risks; and 
   
 (c) notes the current and emerging risks and endorses the actions being taken 

to mitigate those risks. 
   
 (Note: At this point in the proceedings, the meeting was reopened to the public 

and press). 
 
11.  
 

WORK PROGRAMME 
 

11.1 The Director of Legal and Governance (a) submitted a report providing details of 
an outline work programme for the Committee to July 2017 and (b) suggested that 
the Audit Committee Annual Report be circulated to Members of this Committee 
and the former Audit Committee for comment and submitted direct to the Full 
Council Meeting rather than to the next meeting of this Committee. 

  
11.2 Resolved: That the work programme is approved and the Annual Audit Report is 

submitted to the Full Council Meeting in January 2017 as now reported. 
 
12.  
 

CHANGES TO THE ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE APPOINTMENT OF 
EXTERNAL AUDITORS 
 

12.1 Kayleigh Inman, Senior Finance Manager, Internal Audit, introduced a report of 
the Head of Strategic Finance that summarised the changes to the arrangements 
for appointing External Auditors following the closure of the Audit Commission. 
Appended to the report was a prospectus issued by the Public Sector Audit 
Appointments Limited on developing the option of a national scheme for local 
auditor appointments. 

Page 8



Meeting of the Audit and Standards Committee 16.11.2016 

  

12.2 As requested at the previous meeting of the Committee, the report also included 
consideration of the costs and benefits of independent procurement and opting 
into the Sector-led Body. The Council would need to consider the available 
options and put in place new arrangements in time to make a first appointment by 
31 December 2017. All the South and West Yorkshire local authorities had been 
contacted, together with the Sheffield City Region and Passenger Transport 
Executive, and all preferred the sector-led approach. 

  

12.3 Resolved: That the Committee:- 
  

 (a) supports the principle of joining the Public Sector Audit Appointments 
(PSAA) Limited for the procurement of audit contracts with effect from 
2018/19; and 

   

 (b) notes that a formal decision to accept the PSAA invitation will be required by 
Full Council at a later date. 

   

 (Note: Alison Ormston, KPMG, left the meeting prior to consideration of the above 
item on the Changes to the Arrangements for the Appointment of the External 
Auditor due to a potential conflict of interest). 

 
13.  
 

DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS 
 

13.1 It was noted that meetings of the Committee would be held at 5.00 p.m. on:- 
  
 • 8 December 2016 (additional meeting if required) 

• 12 January 2017 
• 16 February 2017 (additional meeting if required) 
• 9 March 2017 (additional meeting if required) 
• 27 April 2017 
• 13 July 2017 

 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
Report of: Senior Finance Manager, Internal Audit   
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Date:  12th January 2017    
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject:   Progress on High Opinion Audit Reports  
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report: Kayleigh Inman, Senior Finance Manager, Internal Audit  
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  The attached is the report of the Senior Finance Manager, Internal Audit 
providing an updated position on implementation of recommendations contained in 
audit reports issued with a high opinion.  
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendations:  
 
Members are asked to: 
To note the contents of the report and agree to remove the following items from the 
tracker. 

• Firs Hill Primary School – Financial Healthcheck (CYPF) 

• Mailroom processes (pro-active fraud review) (Resources) 

• Delivery of Highways Schemes (Place) 

 
_____________________________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers: 
 

 
Category of Report: Open 
 
* Delete as appropriate 
 
If Closed, the report/appendix is not for publication because it contains exempt 
information under Paragraph (insert relevant paragraph number) of Schedule 12A of 
the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).’ 
 

 

Audit and Standards 
Committee Report 

Agenda Item 6

Page 11



  Statutory and Council Policy Checklist       

 
    Financial implications 

 

 
YES/NO Cleared by:  K Inman 

    Legal implications 
 

YES/NO  
 

Equality of Opportunity implications 

YES/NO  
 

Tackling Health Inequalities implications 
 

YES/NO  
 

Human rights implications 
 

YES/NO  
 

Environmental and Sustainability implications 
 

 
YES/NO  

Economic impact 
 

YES/NO  
 

Community safety implications 
 

 
YES/NO  

Human resources implications 
 

 
YES/NO  

Property implications 
 

YES/NO  
 

Area(s) affected 
 

 

Relevant Scrutiny Committee if decision called in 
 

Not applicable 
 

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?   YES/NO 

 

Press release 
 

 
YES/NO  

 
 

Page 12



  

                                                           
 
REPORT TO SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL AUDIT AND STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE 
12th JANUARY 2017 
 
Internal Audit Report on Progress Against High Opinion Audit Reports. 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1.  The purpose of this ‘rolling’ report is to present and communicate to 

members of the audit and standards committee progress made against 
recommendations in audit reports that have been given a high opinion. 

 
Introduction 
 
2.   An auditable area receiving a high opinion is considered by internal audit 

to be an area where the risk of the activity not achieving objectives is high 
and sufficient controls were not present at the time of the review.  

 
3. This report provides an update to the audit and standards committee on 

high opinion audit reports previously reported.  Where internal audit has 
yet to undertake follow up work, the relevant portfolio directors were 
contacted and asked to provide internal audit with a response.  This 
included indicating whether or not the recommendations agreed therein 
have been implemented to a satisfactory standard.  Internal audit clearly 
specified that as part of this response, directors were to provide specific 
dates for implementation and that this was required by the audit 
committee.   

 
     This report also details those high opinion audits that internal audit plan to 

remove from future update reports.  The audit and standards committee is 
asked to support this.   
   

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
There are no direct financial implications arising from the report. 
 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES IMPLICATIONS 
There are no equal opportunities implications arising from the report. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
1. That the audit and standards committee notes the content of the report. 
 
2. That the audit and standards committee agrees to the removal of the 
following reports from the tracker:   
 

• Firs Hill Primary School – Financial Healthcheck (CYPF) 

• Mailroom processes (pro-active fraud review) (Resources) 

• Delivery of Highways Schemes (Place) 

     

Kayleigh Inman 
Senior Finance Manager, Internal Audit. 

 

Page 13



  

                                      
SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
UPDATED POSITION ON HIGH OPINION AUDIT REPORTS AS AT JANUARY 2017 
 
The following table summarises the implementation of recommendations, by priority, in each audit review. 
 

Audit Title Total Complete Ongoing Outstanding 

 Critical High Medium Ec/eff Critical High Medium Ec/eff Critical High Medium Ec/eff Critical 

Payroll Pension 
Arrangements 

 5 2   4 1   1 1   

Capital Schemes and 
Capital Gateway 
Approvals 

 6 2   4 2   2    

DOLs 2 10 17 2 1 8 14 1 1 2 3 1  

Safeguarding 
Administration 

 8 7 2  4 3 1  4 4 1  

Mailroom Processes  1    1        

Highway Maintenance  1 2    2   1    

Transitions 1 7 3   3    4 3  1 

External Funding   4    3    1    

Statutory Responsibilities  2        2    

Delivery of Highways 1  2  1  2       

Total 4 44 35 4 2 27 24 2 1 17 11 2 1 

 

Shaded items to be removed from the tracker 

 
In total, updates have been provided on 87 recommendations.  Of these, 55 (63%) have been implemented and 31 (36%) are ongoing, indicating 
work has been started but not yet fully completed.  Only 1 recommendation was considered to be outstanding (1%).  

P
age 14



  

 
1. Appointeeship Service (issued to audit committee 22.7.2016) 

As at Jan 2017 

This report was issued to management on the 11.7.16 with the latest agreed implementation date of 30.11.2016.   Due to the timescales for completion of this 
report, an update on progress with recommendation implementation will be included in the next tracker report.  

 
2. ICAT to STIT (issued to audit committee 22.7.2016) 

As at Jan 2017 

This report was issued to management on the 11.7.16 with the latest agreed implementation date of 30.11.2016.   Due to the timescales for completion of this 
report, an update on progress with recommendation implementation will be included in the next tracker report.  

 
3. SCAS - Residential and Nursing Agreements (issued to audit committee 1.8.2016) 

As at Jan 2017 

This report was issued to management on the 12.7.16 with the latest agreed implementation date of 30.04.2017.   An update on progress with 
recommendation implementation will be included in the next tracker report.  

 
4. The Markets Service (issued to audit committee 28.9.2016) 

As at Jan 2017 

The final report was issued to management on the 9.9.16 with the latest agreed implementation date of 31.3.2017.   Due to the timescales for completion of 
this report, an update on progress with recommendation implementation will be included in the next tracker report. 

 
 5. Firs Hill – Financial Healthcheck (issued to audit committee 24.10.2016) 

As at Jan 2017 

The final report was issued to management on the 22.9.16.   The draft report with the audit findings and recommendations were discussed with the 
headteacher and school business manager at the end of the school visit with the latest agreed implementation date being 30.9.2016.  Firs Hill School have 
now converted to an Academy and as such Internal Audit can have no further involvement with the school.   The headteacher and governors are responsible 
for ensuring recommendations made have been appropriately implemented. 

Internal Audit proposes to remove this item from the tracker. 
 
6. Council Processes for Management Investigations (issued to audit committee 21.11.2016) 

As at Jan 2017 

This report was issued to management on the 20.9.16 with the latest agreed implementation date of 31.12.2016.   Due to the timescales for completion of this 
report, an update on progress with recommendation implementation will be included in the next tracker report.  

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 15



  

7. Payroll Pension Arrangements (issued to audit committee 21.6.2016) 

As at July 2016 

This report was issued to management on the 14.4.2016 with the latest agreed implementation date of 1.7.2016.   Due to the timescales for completion of this 
report, an update on progress with recommendation implementation will be included in the next tracker report.  

 

As at Jan 2017 

An update on progress made with the recommendation implementation is included below.   5 out of 7 recommendations have been implemented and with work 
ongoing on the remaining 2.  There are known issues with processes at SYPA and so for the 2 ongoing recommendations a long revised implementation date 
is expected to enable improvements to be implemented within SYPA. 

 

Ref Recommendation Priority Original 
Responsible 
Officer 

Original Implementation Date Updated position  - provided by  
HR Service Manager 1/12/2016. 

7.1 SCC should liaise with SYPA to ensure the 
circumstances where SCC could face extra charges 
are clearly defined, especially given the current 
situation which is outlined below, so we are not subject 
to any more charges. 
 
 
 

Medium Peter White, 
HR Service 
Manager 
 

01/04/2016 
 
 

Action complete - as the 
consultation closed and this is 
now business as usual. 
 
HR Service Manager responded 
to the SYPA Administration 
Strategy consultation document 
verbally at the Joint Pensions 
Group on 18/1/16 and in writing to 
the SYPA Pensions manager on 
22/1/16. 
 
Our response was pulled together 
with the involvement of our 
Payroll provider. 
 
To date SYPA have still not 
formally responded and have not 
defined ‘exceptional 
circumstances’, however they 
have carried out numerous 
requests for additional work 
without charge.  

7.2 SCC and Capita need to work together to ensure that 
timescales for submission of information to SYPA are 
achievable. It is recommended that Capita look at their 
system and see if there is a practical way they can 
send data more than once a month. SCC should also 

High Shaun Lee, 
Payroll 
Manager and 
Peter White, 
HR Service 

01/04/2016 Action complete 
 
As a result of the consultation 
referenced in 7.1, SYPA agreed 
to remove the KPI for contract 

P
age 16



  

discuss with SYPA the impracticality of this timescale 
and request that the strategy is amended. Alongside 
this, once the initial strategy comes into place, it is 
important that performance is closely monitored and 
that there is a process in place to do this. 

Manager 
 

changes as this was deemed an 
unachievable measure where 
most employers produce payroll 
reports linked to payroll cycles 
(i.e. monthly). 
SYPA also clarified that fines 
would only be implemented for 
late annual returns (SCC returned 
on time) and that their approach 
would be to work with employers 
to improve regular data transfers 
through systems improvements 
and training before resulting to 
fines. 

7.3 These timescales SYPA has to respond/communicate 
with members and SCC should be altered so that they 
are very clearly defined. It is recommended that SYPA 
have a period of time from receiving the query to 
completing an initial verification of all required 
information, for example, through a checklist. SYPA 
will then have the timescales outlined in the Pensions 
Administration Strategy to reply to the query - this will 
stop the process being unduly delayed. 

Medium Peter White, 
HR Service 
Manager 
 

21/03/2016 
 
Revised implementation date: 
1/4/2018 

Action ongoing 
 
SYPA disclosed on 30/11/16 at 
their AGM that they are intending 
to move towards monthly returns 
for Payroll data in April 2018. 
Part of this approach will enable 
SYPA to have access to real-time 
Payroll data ensuring they have 
the necessary information to hand 
to enable it to perform the task 
within timescale. 
 
Work with SYPA and Capita 
Payroll is ongoing to resolve 
current data transfer issues, whilst 
recognising the future systems 
approach so they dovetail 
effectively.  

7.4 It is recommended that SCC requests that the new 
Pensions Administration Strategy is not implemented 
until the new system is operating effectively and 
providing the required management information. 

High Julie Toner, 
Director of 
Human 
Resources 

01/06/2016 Action complete 
 
The new Pensions Administration 
Strategy was implemented by 
SYPA on 1/4/16 as is their right 
provided for through statute by 
Regulation 59 of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme 

P
age 17



  

Regulations 2013 (as amended). 

7.5 SCC should ensure that the backlog of cases relating 
to its staff is provided by SYPA and is at an acceptable 
level before entering into the Pensions Administration 
Strategy. 

High Peter White, 
HR Service 
Manager 

01/04/2016 Action complete 
 
The Pensions backlog of 8000+ 
enquiries was cleared in 
preparation for the 
implementation of their new UPM 
system in January 2015.  

7.6 An agreement should be sought with SYPA regarding 
the staff based at the SYPA satellite office that results 
in either Capita/SCC taking control of the tasks they 
perform, having control over these staff or SCC no 
longer being held accountable for these performance 
targets. 

High Peter White,  
HR Service 
Manager 

01/07/2016 
 
Revised implementation date: 
1/4/2017 

Action ongoing 
 
SCC HR met with the Head of 
SYPA (Gary Chapman) on 
13/5/16 to discuss the 
management and performance of 
the SYPA Sheffield Office. As a 
result of these discussions the 
Head of SYPA confirmed at the 
AGM that local Pensions Offices 
will support all Pensions members 
within their region going forward 
and not just the Councils’ 
employees/members.  
 
HR is to review the funding 
arrangements for the Sheffield 
Office as it is currently solely 
funded by SCC. Recent figures 
obtained by HR demonstrate that 
nearly 50% of appointments are 
now taken by non-SCC 
employees/members. 

7.7 It is recommended that an SLA is agreed with SYPA 
defining what performance levels we expect from 
them, to be implemented when the Pensions 
Administration Strategy is. Alongside this, the SLA will 
need to be monitored so that we are receiving the 
service we expect. 

High Peter White,  
HR Service 
Manager 

01/04/2016 Action complete 
 
The new Pensions Administration 
Strategy was implemented by 
SYPA on 1/4/16 and contains the 
levels of performance we can 
expect from them. Their 
adherence to these standards has 
been raised with SYPA on 
4/11/16 by SCC. 

P
age 18



  

 
8. Delivery of Capital Schemes and Capital Gateway Approvals (Place) (issued to audit committee 19.4.2016) 

As at July 2016 

This report was issued to management on the 29.03.16 with the latest agreed implementation date of 31.12.16.   An update on progress with recommendation 
implementation will be included in the next tracker report.  

 

As at Jan 2017 

An update on progress made with the recommendation implementation is included below.   6 out of 8 recommendations have been implemented and with work 
ongoing on the remaining 2. 

 

Ref Recommendation Priority Original 
Responsible 
Officer 

Original Implementation Date Updated position  - Interim Head 
of Service, Capital Delivery 
Service 30.11.16 

8.1 In order to maximise the benefits to be derived from 
the centralisation of capital delivery, the Executive 
Director of Place should consider the incorporation of 
all associated services, such as the UED in to a 
consolidated Capital Delivery Service (CDS). 
 
As part of the capital project initiation process both 
within Place and the other portfolios, consideration 
should be given to the use of CDS as first call for the 
provision of project management and associated 
delivery services. 
 
It is further recommended that the Executive Director, 
Place raise this matter at EMT for discussion with all 
Executive Directors. 

2 - High 
 

Director of 
Business 
Strategy & 
Regulation, 
Place 
 

30/12/2016 Action complete – now 
business as usual. 
 
Discussions have been help with 
Parks and an Achieving Change 
is due issued for a proposed 
transfer of staff and duties to 
CDS.  
 
The potential incorporation of 
relevant UED functions into CDS 
will be considered as Place 
prepares to implement its major 
change project ‘A Business Like 
Place’.  
At its meeting on 1

st
 November 

EMT reconfirmed that CDS are 
the Council’s Centre of 
Excellence for Capital Project 
Delivery and are to be used for 
the delivery of all capital projects.  
 
A further detailed paper will be 
presented back to EMT on 
implementation and implications 
of this for services in the Council. 

8.2 The roles and responsibilities of the City Regeneration 
Team’s Project Promoters should be clarified so as to 

2 - High Director of 
Business 

31/05/2016 Action complete – now 
business as usual. 

P
age 19



  

avoid confusion and potential duplication with those of 
the CDS Project Managers.   
 
This should define the limits to the Project Promoters’ 
responsibilities and acknowledge the CDS Project 
Managers’ role in managing the projects (In line with 
corporate project management and capital delivery 
procedures). 
 
The City Regeneration Team (and any other service) 
should only charge fees to individual projects subject 
to the prior agreement of the Project Sponsor and the 
availability of funding within the project budget to do 
so. 

Strategy & 
Regulation, 
Place 
 

 

 
A meeting has been held with 
Director of Creative Sheffield over 
role and responsibilities between 
CDS and City Regeneration 
Division (CRD) and the following 
was agreed.  
 
For physical regeneration 
schemes, City Regeneration 
Division (Creative Sheffield) are 
the client and Capital Delivery 
Service (BS&R) are Project 
Managers.  
 
There are not considered to be 
any outstanding issues of 
principle or structure with this 
division of roles; however more 
work is required to implement a 
positive culture of team work, 
transparency and collaboration. It 
is imperative that proper Gateway 
processes are followed at all 
times.  
 
Leadership from the two services 
are rolling out a further cycle of 
training and consultation to 
implement the required 
processes. This will reinforce the 
roles of each team and identify 
any areas of overlap and 
duplication. Any identified areas 
of duplication will result in a 
transfer of resources from CRD to 

CDS. 

8.3 Transitional and successor planning arrangements 
should be introduced for the effective hand-over of 
responsibilities in order to ensure the prompt and 
effective roll-out of the new Capital Approvals 

2 - High Director of 
Business 
Strategy & 
Regulation, 

31/03/2016 
 
Revised implementation date 
1/4/2017 

Action ongoing 
 
Following the endorsement at 
EMT on 1

st
 of November of CDS 

P
age 20



  

Framework.   
 
In the short term, the acting post holder should be 
given suitable support and guidance to avoid 
unnecessary delays and the effective embedding of 
the arrangements across the Council. 

Place 
 

as the Capital Delivery Centre of 
Excellence and resolution of the 
future of Property following the 
insourcing of Property Services it 
is now intended to recruit to the 
permanent Head of Service. 

8.4 Recommendations raised at 1.1, 1.2 & 1.3 further 
apply to these findings.   
 
Consideration should be given to alternative methods 
of funding the PMO. 
 
Actions agreed as part of the Head of CDS's report in 
to fees and charges should be implemented within 
appropriate time frames so as to further embed the 
service as the Council's provider of project design, 
management and delivery functions. 

2 - High Director of 
Business 
Strategy & 
Regulation, 
Place 
 

31/03/2016 
 
Revised implementation date 
1/4/2017 

Action ongoing 
 
Following EMT on the 1

st
 

November a meeting is to be held 
between the Director of BS&R 
and Executive Director of 
Resources to review current CDS 
fee structure.   
 
The detailed paper back to EMT 
referred to earlier will include the 
benchmarking of CDS fees both 
internally with other fee charging 
services and externally with 
appropriate consultancy rates. 

8.5 The Executive Director, Place should request a 
mandate from EMT requiring all services initiating 
capital projects to utilise CDS for project management 
and delivery, design and contract administration, 
where ever feasible.  
 
Services should be required to formally apply to EMT 
for exemptions to these arrangements, setting out the 
cost implications and the benefits in doing so. 

2 - High 
 

Director of 
Business 
Strategy & 
Regulation, 
Place 
 

31/05/2016 Action complete 
 
This item is covered in the 
response to 8.1 above. 

8.6 Internal Audit agrees with the action proposed by the 
CPG to reject multiple-gateway applications (ie those 
skipping Gateways 0 and 1 without Outcome Board & 
CPG approval). 
 
Over and above this, however, the sponsors and 
service managers in question should be formally 
reminded of the need to adhere to the corporate 
Capital Approvals Framework and the benefits in 
robust project management to be derived from doing 
so. 

2 - High Director of 
Business 
Strategy & 
Regulation, 
Place 
 

31/05/2016 Action complete – now 
business as usual. 
 
There has been further work at 
Programme Boards and CPG 
over ensuring all projects follow 
the Gateway Process. This has 
led to improvements in 
compliance with the process and 
will continue to be monitored by 
the PMO and reported to CPG. 

P
age 21



  

Particular attention should be paid to ensuring all 
services comply with the requirement for submission at 
Gateway 3 to ensure appropriate use of all available 
capital resources. 

 

8.7 Sponsors not having undertaken training in the new 
Capital Gateway process should be required to do so 
as part of the planned roll-out of the revised 
Framework in April 2016. 
 
Over and above this, training should be provided to all 
new officers nominated to be Project Sponsors. 

3 - Medium Executive 
Director of 
Resources & 
Director of 
Business 
Strategy & 
Regulation, 
Place 

30/04/2016 Action complete – now 
business as usual. 
 
Revised training and awareness 
of the process has now been 
undertaken with Sponsors and 
Programme Boards.  Any new 
sponsors will also be trained in 
the process. 

8.8 All Project Managers should be required to comply 
with the capital delivery and approval procedures and 
complete the standard monthly monitoring templates. 

3 - Medium Director of 
Business 
Strategy & 
Regulation, 
Place. 

31/05/2016 Action complete – now 
business as usual. 
 
A report was taken to EMT on 
progress with the Capital 
Gateway approval and monthly 
performance reporting on 11th 
October. These reported good 
progress with completion of 
monthly reports and this has 
continued with last month seeing 
in excess of 90% completion. This 
will continue to be monitored by 
the PMO and will be reported 
monthly to CPG and EMT. 

 
 
9. Deprivation of Liberties Safeguards (DOLS) (Communities) (issued to the audit committee 15.4.2016) 

As at July 2016 

This report was issued to management on the 21.03.16 with the latest agreed implementation date of 30.9.2016.   An update on progress with 
recommendation implementation will be included in the next tracker report.  

 

As at Jan 2017 

An update on progress made with the recommendation implementation is included below.  In summary 24 of the 31 recommendations have been completed 
and work is ongoing with the remaining 7 recommendations.   A follow-up audit is currently underway and will validate the update provided through limited 
testing. 

 

P
age 22



  

Ref Recommendation Priority Original 

Responsible 

Officer 

Original Implementation Date Update from Simon Richards - 
Head of Quality & Safeguarding 
21/11/16 

9.1 Management should establish and formally document 
the objectives of the section.  The objectives should 
have a clear link to the corporate objectives of the 
council, and be subject to regular (at least annual) 
reviews. 

Medium Simon Richards - 
Head of Quality & 
Safeguarding 
 

31/03/2016 
 

Action complete 
 
Service Plan objectives in place. 

9.2 It is recommended that an operational plan is 
produced and documented for the DOLS team which: 
o Reflects corporate, portfolio and other 
objectives/requirements: 
o Reflects statutory requirements 
o Details how the service is to be delivered 
o Is regularly reviewed 
o Is supported by adequate resources. 

High Simon Richards - 
Head of Quality & 
Safeguarding 
 

29/02/2016 
 

Action complete 
 
Service Plan objectives in place. 

9.3 Management to bring together all their risk 
management information into a formal risk 
management plan in the approved SCC format. The 
risk management plan to be a regular agenda item 
and so subject to regular review. 

Medium Simon Richards - 
Head of Quality & 
Safeguarding 
 
 

31/07/2016 
 

Action complete 
 
Management have brought 
together all their risk management 
information into a formal risk 
management plan in the approved 
SCC format. The risk 
management plan is a regular 
agenda item at the Care and 
Support Leadership Team (CSLT) 
meetings and so subject to 
regular review. 

9.4 Management should ensure that all the identified 
senior managers complete their training as soon as 
possible and establish an implementation date for the 
formal quality assurance process by senior 
management. 

Medium Simon Richards - 
Head of Quality & 
Safeguarding 
 

29/02/2016 
 
Revised implementation date: 
13/12/2016 

Action ongoing 
 
Training has been delivered to 
senior managers to enable them 
to authorise assessments 
(29.4.16) 
 
One senior manager attends 
scrutiny panel each month to QA.  
 
We have 2 more senior managers 
to attend panel and following this 

P
age 23



  

we will review formal quality 
assurance process by senior 
management. 

9.5 The service should develop a detailed action plan to 
clear the backlog in the DOLS and CoP DOLS 
requests and reassessments.  In clearing the backlog 
situation, management should also ensure that 
adequate resources are allocated to expedite new 
applications and upcoming reviews to prevent these 
cases being delayed. Progress on clearing the 
backlog to be reported monthly. 

Critical Simon Richards - 
Head of Quality & 
Safeguarding 
 

31/03/2016 
 
Revised implementation date: 
31/03/2017 

Action ongoing 
 
Action has been taken to ensure 
the risks posed by the backlog are 
fully understood, taking into 
consideration the reduced 
resources available. Progress on 
clearing the backlog is reported 
monthly. 
 
In accordance with the risk 
assessment, work continues to 
shift the team’s focus from 
predominantly carrying out 
reassessments to prioritising the 
most urgent cases (across new 
assessments and 
reassessments). This has 
included completing the process 
review (Lean Cycle) work, and 
piloting an approach based on 
prioritising the most urgent cases 
and implementing proposed 
process efficiencies from the 
review.  
 
Overall the pilot has shown that it 
is possible to optimise productivity 
by establishing process 
timescales and standards.    
  
Whilst some increases in output 
are being achieved with existing 
resources these are insufficient to 
make any appreciable difference 
to the level of risk inherent in the 
size of the backlog. 
 
A Business Case recommending 

P
age 24



  

additional funding to address 
DOLS backlog was discussed at 
PLT 05/10/16. PLT has agreed 
that carrying the current and 
projected level of risk is not a 
preferable option and that the 
allocation of further resource 
would be needed to mitigate this.  
 
However, as at 28/11/16, PLT has 
not yet made a decision on the 
recommendations.  The Director 
of Adult Services is to escalate 
and pursue this matter.  Once 
finally agreed, this will need to go 
to tender – hence the revised 
implementation date. 

9.6 A full progress report should be compiled monthly to 
include all DOLS applications from care homes and 
DOLS applications in regard of Supported Living 
which are progressed via the Court of Protection and 
managed by Legal Services.   These should be 
stated separately to ensure that the performance of 
the two areas can be monitored. 
Action to address the poor performance against 
statutory targets should be identified and monitored. 

High   Simon Richards - 
Head of Quality & 
Safeguarding 
 

31/03/2016 
 

Action complete 
 
A full progress report is compiled 
monthly and reported to CSLT. 
This includes an update on 
performance and risk in relation to 
all DOLS applications (including 
specific reference to DOLS 
applications from care homes and 
CoP DOLS). 
 
Action to address the poor 
performance against statutory 
targets has been identified and is 
monitored. 

 Court of Protection DOLS – Leadership 
 

9.7 Internal Audit recommends that a lead person should 
be assigned for Court of Protection DOLS, and they 
should perform a full review of the current situation 
and the actions required to address the backlog of 
cases. This review to be presented to the service 
management team/portfolio leadership team and the 
executive management team as a priority. 

Critical Simon Richards - 
Head of Quality & 
Safeguarding 
 

31/03/2016 
 
 

Action complete 
 
We now have a designated 
contact in Legal services for CoP 
DOLS, and work has been 
undertaken on the current 
situation and backlog of cases.   

P
age 25



  

9.8 To fully and clearly document the process regarding 
CoP DOLS. 

High  Simon Richards - 
Head of Quality & 
Safeguarding 

31/03/2016 
 

Action complete 
 
Process is in place. 

9.9 Establish clear lines of responsibilities for the CoP 
DOLS regarding actions to be taken by the supported 
living team and those by legal. 
 
All CoP DOLS to be detailed and monitored within an 
appropriate format, with regular reports to senior 
management produced detailing progression of 
cases and any issues hindering progress to be noted. 
The reports should be presented to regular service 
management team and to the DOLS Task Group. 

High  Simon Richards - 
Head of Quality & 
Safeguarding 
 

31/03/2016 
 

Action complete 
 
Legal have in place a file-closing 
procedure which is sent to clients 
upon receipt of a final order. This 
provides detailed instructions on 
the review hearing date and what 
is required from the client in order 
to comply with and meet court 
deadlines i.e. the date a worker 
should be allocated by and when 
statement is due (in practice if 
there are no significant change in 
circumstances this will be done on 
the papers).  
 
Legal then diarise these review 
dates centrally in an outlook 
calendar accessible by all legal 
staff to account for changes in 
personnel, this then alerts us to 
contact the client and inform them 
that a review is imminent and to 
allocate a worker (if not already 
done so as per the above 
process). 

9.10 Supported Living management and legal 
representatives to perform a joint review of all CoP 
DOLS documents required as evidence and report 
concerns in the quality of this to the relevant Head of 
Service in order that these concerns can be 
addressed (and staff completing these given 
guidance) to ensure they meet the standards 
required for the CoP. 

High Simon Richards - 
Head of Quality & 
Safeguarding 
 

31/03/2016 
 

Action complete 
 
Training and exemplars where 
necessary have been provided to 
the LD and adult client service.  
 
 
 

9.11 In order to ensure consistency of information, 
standard letters should be determined, documented 
and used to communicate the CoP decisions to the 
relevant interested parties. These should clearly state 

High Simon Richards - 
Head of Quality & 
Safeguarding 
 

31/03/2016 
 
Revised implementation date: 
31/01/2017 

Action ongoing 
 
No standard letter in terms of 
informing interested parties that a 

P
age 26



  

the decision of the CoP and their responsibilities to 
notify of changes etc. 
 
Copies of the letters sent should then be held on the 
carefirst/wisdom system file for each client. 

DOL in the community has been 
authorised – to be developed. 
 
 
 

9.12 To ensure the completeness of the recording process 
it is recommended that all forms completed as part of 
the CoP DOLS process are scanned and copied into 
the individuals’ carefirst/wisdom records. 

Medium Simon Richards - 
Head of Quality & 
Safeguarding 
 

31/03/2016 
 
Revised implementation date: 
31/01/2017 

Action ongoing 
 
Liaison between Legal Services 
and DOLs office ongoing to look 
at access to CareFirst and 
Wisdom systems to develop a 
practical solution to this issue.  
 
Legal do not have access to Care 
First, however have proposed that 
they could incorporate a 
sentence/paragraph within their 
initial instructions form requesting 
that the client upload the form to 
Wisdom once completed and sent 
to legal. 

9.13 All DOLS requests should be treated consistently; 
therefore the carers responsible for clients in 
supported living arrangements should receive a letter 
acknowledging the CoP DOLS request and the care 
arrangements for the client pending the decision on 
the CoP DOLS request. 

High  Simon Richards - 
Head of Quality & 
Safeguarding 
 

31/03/2016 
 
Revised implementation date: 
31/01/2017 

Action ongoing 
 
Confirmed that legal will notify 
interested parties of any other 
hearing. Work is ongoing with 
legal to complete this. 

9.14 Establish plans to manage and support those 
affected by the decommissioning of Supported Living 
establishments where CoP DOLS had been 
requested 

High  Simon Richards - 
Head of Quality & 
Safeguarding 
 

31/03/2016 
 

Action complete 
 
Process in place. 
Once supported living 
establishments are 
decommissioned, DOLs office 
notify the service and Legal that 
they have been ceased under the 
DOLs process and need to be 
authorised under the CoP.  

Care Home/Hospital DOLS  
 

9.15 To ensure best practice it is recommended that a 
formal set of procedures for the management and 

Medium Simon Richards - 
Head of Quality & 

31/03/2016 
 

Action complete 
 

P
age 27



  

application of DOLS are produced. The procedure 
notes should incorporate and reflect the best practice 
guidelines and be subject to regular review. 

Safeguarding 
 

It is our assessment that the 
Association of Directors of Social 
Services (ADASS) guidance that 
the team follows provides a 
comprehensive set of procedures 
for the management and 
application of DOLS. Due to this it 
would be unnecessary duplication 
to complete separate procedures 
(particularly in light of the 
pressure on resources and the 
imminent release of new Law 
Commission guidance). 

9.16 It is recommended that clear procedures are drawn 
up to ensure consistency of approach in prioritising 
both urgent and standard cases. 

Medium Simon Richards - 
Head of Quality & 
Safeguarding 

31/03/2016 
 

Action complete 
 
All Standards & Urgent 
applications that come in continue 
to be listed and sent to the duty 
manager at the end of each day 
to be looked at and prioritised.  
 
We now have a process in place 
to ensure consistency of 
approach in prioritising both 
urgent and standard cases.  
 
See also 9.15 

9.17 The backlog of cases should not impact upon the 
requirement to inform relevant parties promptly, of 
the decisions made in regard of DOLS. The section 
should therefore review the timescales to determine 
realistic targets for completion of risk assessments, 
quality assurance and the issuing of letters to 
communicate the decisions to relevant parties. The 
revised timescale targets should then be monitored 
and reported upon. 

Medium Simon Richards - 
Head of Quality & 
Safeguarding 
 
 

31/03/2016 
 

Action complete 
 
A timescale has been agreed 
from the point of authorisation to 
the issuing of communications. 
This timescale is 10 working days. 

9.18 Copies of all correspondence relating to clients 
should be held within the wisdom section of Carefirst. 

Medium Simon Richards - 
Head of Quality & 
Safeguarding 

31/03/2016 
 

Action complete 
 
A dip sample has been 
undertaken and clarity with regard 
to business support procedures 

P
age 28



  

has been issued. 

9.19 All persons, especially family members, identified by 
the Best Interest Assessment as having an interest in 
the client should be formally informed of the DOLS 
decision. This should include the starting date and 
the date of review. Copies of letters should be 
retained in the carefirst records of the client. 

Medium Simon Richards - 
Head of Quality & 
Safeguarding 

31/03/2016 
 

Action complete 
 
A review date has been added to 
all letters.  
Business support now routinely 
upload copies of letters to 
Wisdom. 

9.20 All correspondences should be sent out to inform 
interested parties within one week of the DOLS 
decision being made. 

Medium Simon Richards - 
Head of Quality & 
Safeguarding 

31/03/2016 
 

Action complete 
 
A realistic timescale has been set 
for correspondence. (See 2.11). 
One week is not considered to be 
realistic with current Business 
Support staffing. 

9.21 All forms used should be formally dated and subject 
to regular annual review to ensure they meet legal 
requirements. 

Efficiency/Eff
ectiveness 

Simon Richards - 
Head of Quality & 
Safeguarding 

31/03/2016 
 

Action complete 
 
Date added to form. Annual 
review of all DOLS forms agreed. 

9.22 Management should review the existing contract with 
the mental health service to ensure it is adequate, 
considering the number of clients who are still waiting 
for a paid representative. 

High   Simon Richards - 
Head of Quality & 
Safeguarding 
 

31/03/2016 
 

Action complete 
 
A contract is now in place and it is 
regularly monitored. 

9.23 The allocation of relevant person representatives 
(RPR) to clients should ideally consider which RPR 
already visits the care home where the client is 
based, unless the client either requires the skills set 
of a specific relevant person representative, or is 
transferring care homes (due to care requirements) 
where to change the relevant person representative 
could cause further distress. In all cases, each client 
should be allocated a named paid representative who 
will be responsible for visiting them regularly on a 
one to one basis. 
This should be added into future funding agreements 
with Sheffield Citizens Advice Mental Health Unit & 
Advocacy Service DOLS Relevant Person's 
Representative Service. 

Medium 
 

Simon Richards - 
Head of Quality & 
Safeguarding 
 

31/03/2016 
 

Action complete 
 
RPR service inform DOLS office 
when they have capacity to take 
cases from the backlog.  
 
Consideration is given to the 
clients/locations they are already 
visiting, but the main criteria are 
priority of the case for allocation 
using ADASS risk assessment 
Tool.  
 
We are continuing to take account 
of this recommendation where it 
does not conflict with the above. 
 

9.24 Management should ensure that a signed Form 25 is Medium Simon Richards - 31/03/2016 Action complete 

P
age 29



  

received from the paid representative service for 
each of the clients they are allocated, and the person 
signing the Form 25 should be the person allocated 
to the client. This should be checked by Management 
before scanning into the client records in carefirst. 
 

Head of Quality & 
Safeguarding 
 

 
The process of receiving signed 
form 25s has been reviewed and 
revised. A form 25 is now only 
required at the beginning of the 
first authorisation, and if there is a 
change in RPR.  

9.25 It is recommended that the financial procedures are 
formally documented and finance business partner to 
be consulted to ensure the procedures concur with 
SCC financial guidance. 

Medium Simon Richards - 
Head of Quality & 
Safeguarding 
 

31/03/2016 
 

Action complete 
 
Work has been done with the 
finance business partner to 
address this. 

9.26 Anyone working for SCC is representing the council 
and should be made aware of this responsibility. This 
is the purpose of the staff induction and the signing of 
the code of conduct acknowledges this responsibility. 
The service should ensure that all staff have received 
an appropriate induction and have all signed the 
code of conduct. 

Medium Simon Richards - 
Head of Quality & 
Safeguarding 

31/03/2016 
 

Action complete 
 
All BIAs had signed the code of 
conduct.  All BIA’s are supported 
to access relevant SCC 
information relevant to their 
duties. 

9.27 There should be a documented training and 
development plan for the section that is compiled 
following mentoring/1:1 sessions or team meetings 
for the section. This would ensure that gaps in 
training requirements etc. are identified and that 
specific training can be investigated or developed 
and the relevant individuals targeted as to their 
needs.  
 
The delivery of training and development should be 
monitored and reported against the training and 
development plan at management meetings. 

Medium Simon Richards - 
Head of Quality & 
Safeguarding 
 

30/09/2016 
 
Revised implementation date: 
31/03/2017 

Action ongoing. 
 
BIA’s have to attend specific 
training to keep their qualification.  
Training and development is an 
item in all supervision records, 
and this is fed in through the 
Training and Development Plan. 
 
We have a buddying process with 
business support. 
 
We are reviewing the service plan 
to ensure learning and 
development is covered. 
 

9.28 
 

Management to perform a full review of DOLS and 
address the current staffing issues by deciding and 
actioning measures which will create a more robust 
service. 
 
The progress of this review should be a regular 

High Simon Richards - 
Head of Quality & 
Safeguarding 
 

31/03/2016 Action complete 

Completed the review and all 
recommendations have been 
incorporated into the risk plan. 
Work continuing on processes 

P
age 30



  

agenda item in senior management meetings and 
reported at portfolio leadership team and executive 
management team levels until satisfactory. 
 
The backlog of DOLS should be detailed in the Risk 
Management Plan. 

and performance.  
 

9.29 To formally document the identification of 
stakeholders and methods of communication with 
stakeholders within a communication plan. This plan 
to be subject to regular review to ensure it remains 
up to date with stakeholder contact information (care 
homes/hospitals). 

Medium Simon Richards - 
Head of Quality & 
Safeguarding 
 

31/03/2016 
 

Action complete 
As part of our shift to focus on the 
most urgent cases (see 9.5), we 
formally documented the 
identification and methods of 
communication with stakeholders 
within a communication plan. 

9.30 To ensure that suitable guidance on data sharing 
arrangements and protocols and encryption are also 
included (or a suitable link provided) on the Elma 
site. 

Medium Simon Richards - 
Head of Quality & 
Safeguarding 
 

31/03/2016 
 

Action complete 
 
We have now added a link from 
ELMA to the corporate 
information sharing and 
governance intranet pages. 

9.31 The new contract for RPRs, to include stated 
requirements regarding the security of the sensitive 
information handled by staff used by the contracted 
supplier, and the procedures to report any such 
instances of security breaches. 

Efficiency/Eff
ectiveness 

Simon Richards - 
Head of Quality & 
Safeguarding 
 

29/02/2016 
 
Revised implementation date: 
31/03/2017 

Action ongoing 
 
Work is ongoing to raise 
awareness in Commissioning 
Services about corporate 
requirement for contracts to detail 
information security procedures 
and information sharing 
arrangements in contracts (in a 
Data Processing Agreement). 
We will ensure that the new 
contract for RPRs includes this. 

 
 
 
 
10. Safeguarding administration and governance (Communities) (issued to the audit committee 15.4.2016) 

As at July 2016 

This report was issued to management on the 21.03.16 with the latest agreed implementation date of 31.03.17.   An update on progress with recommendation 
implementation will be included in the next tracker report.  

 

P
age 31



  

As at Jan 2017 

An update on progress made with the recommendation implementation is included below.   8 out of 17 recommendations have been implemented and with 
work ongoing on the remaining 9. 

 

Ref Recommendation Priority Original 
Responsible 
Officer 

Original Implementation Date Updated position  - provided by  
Head of Quality and Safeguarding 
1/12/2016 
 

10.1 Whilst internal audit recognised that safeguarding in 
Sheffield was part of the Safeguarding Adults 
Strategic Partnership (SASP), objectives for the 
service in Sheffield City Council should be 
considered and put in place.  As a minimum it 
should be recorded that the service follows the 
objectives as per the SASP. 

Efficiency/Eff
ectiveness 

Simon Richards, 
Head of Quality 
and Safeguarding 
 

31/07/2016 Action complete  
 
The Safeguarding Adults 
Strategic Partnership has a 3 year 
strategic plan in place and an 
annual business plan. SCC, as 
the lead partner agency, 
continues to be signed up to 
deliver the objectives in these 
plans.  
 
The Safeguarding Adults Office 
(SAO) Service Plan has been 
updated to directly reference that 
the Service follows the objectives 
as per the SASP.  

10.2 Internal Audit recommends that Safeguarding put 
together a single document to state that South 
Yorkshire Procedures are followed, with the 
exception of the Self Neglect Model, which is 
Sheffield's own. It should also include that there is 
no 'near miss' process, and that in these cases the 
safeguarding process should be followed.   It 
should also include that the council-wide Serious 
Incident Policy is followed. 

Medium Simon Richards, 
Head of Quality 
and Safeguarding 
 

30/04/2016 Action complete  
 
The Safeguarding Adults Office 
Service plan has been reviewed 
to cover these points. 
 
The existing SCC procures 
reference the Self Neglect Risk 
Management Model and the SY 
Procedures state that each South 
Yorkshire area is developing or 
has their own defined policy in 
dealing with this subject. 
 
The Communities Serious 
Incident Policy clarifies that if at 
any time a vulnerable person is 

P
age 32



  

deemed to be at risk then 
Safeguarding procedures must be 
instigated (page 5). 

10.3 The Managing Self Neglect model should be 
reviewed and updated to clearly state who the 
document is aimed at, the process to be followed, 
and what mandatory information is required.    
Ideally this should be a step by step user guide that 
is subject to review on at least an annual basis. 

Medium  Simon Richards, 
Head of Quality 
and Safeguarding 
 

30/04/2016 Action complete 
 
The Self Neglect Risk 
Management Model states who 
the document is aimed at, the 
process to be followed, and what 
mandatory information is required. 
 
It is subject to review on an 
annual basis. 

10.4 Internal Audit recommends that the safeguarding 
processes explicitly include that there is no 
separate near misses policy and that near misses 
go through the same process as safeguarding. 

Medium Simon Richards, 
Head of Quality 
and Safeguarding 
 

30/06/2016 
 
Revised implementation date: 
31/03/17 

Action ongoing 
 
A further review of the South 
Yorkshire Safeguarding 
procedures has been 
commissioned by SASP Board – 
this action will be considered as 
part of this review. 

10.5 Linked to the above recommendation, once the 
safeguarding process has been formalised and put 
in place, management should ensure that all staff 
and appropriate stakeholders have access to them, 
either via Elma or the internet/internet. 

Medium Simon Richards, 
Head of Quality 
and Safeguarding 
 

30/04/2016 
 
Revised implementation date: 
31/03/17 

Action ongoing 
 
The current Safeguarding 
Process is available via ELMA 
(Adult Care and Support Manual). 
The SY Safeguarding Procedures 
are on the SCC website. 
 
A further review of the SY 
Safeguarding procedures has 
been commissioned by SASP 
Board – this action will be 
considered as part of this review. 
 
A South Yorkshire website will 
also be up and running by March 
2017 and this will host all 
procedures. 

10.6 To ensure completeness and accuracy of 
information, management should provide clear 

High Simon Richards, 
Head of Quality 

31/07/2016 
 

Action ongoing 
 

P
age 33



  

guidance on the mandatory safeguarding 
information required. It should be clearly stated 
what system these must be recorded on and in 
what format. 
 
There should be a requirement for mandatory 
details on one system eg: carefirst, with notes 
made stating when other systems may hold 
supplementary information. 

and Safeguarding 
 

Revised implementation date: 
31/03/17 

The current Safeguarding 
Process is available via ELMA. 
The SY Safeguarding Procedures 
are on the SCC website. 
 
We are currently reviewing the 
internal SCC safeguarding 
process as part of the wider SY 
procedures review.  This work is 
designed to simplify the process 
so practitioners are clearer about 
what are the mandatory 
requirements. Once this work is 
completed we will be able to fully 
meet this requirement. 

10.7 Management should introduce a more robust 
checking system, whereby a proportion of screened 
out concerns get revisited by Safeguarding. This 
will enable Safeguarding to identify any trends and 
introduce more training within service if the same 
types of concerns are being screened out when 
they should be proceeding to the next stage. 

Medium Simon Richards, 
Head of Quality 
and Safeguarding 
 

31/07/2016 
 
Revised implementation date: 
31/03/17 

Action ongoing 
 
We monitor re-referral rates back 
into Safeguarding as part of 
monthly performance reporting to 
Care and Support Leadership 
Team.  We also now have 
stronger quality assurance at the 
point of which Safeguarding 
concerns are raised, with 
advanced practitioner direct 
oversight. 
 
However, we are still in the 
process of developing a case file 
audit mechanism to review 
individual cases – progress on 
this has been inhibited due to the 
pace of internal change and we 
will therefore introduce this as 
part of 2017/18 service planning. 

10.8 Internal Audit recommends that the Adults 
Safeguarding Office and Commissioning work more 
closely together when dealing with safeguarding 
concerns about care providers, and that this is 
included in the processes being  put into place in 

High Simon Richards, 
Head of Quality 
and Safeguarding 
 
 

30/09/2016 
 
 
Revised implementation date: 
31/03/17 

Action ongoing 
 
We recognise that once a 
significant risk occurs, we do have 
good cross working in place, 

P
age 34



  

Sheffield.  This would ensure that both teams are 
aware of any problem or potential problem with a 
provider.  In addition, it is advised that operational 
teams have a stronger link with both Adults 
Safeguarding Office and Commissioning, so that 
the operational teams are kept aware of policies, 
procedures and problems with providers. 
 
To ensure that all concerns with regard to 
safeguarding are captured, a contract concern form 
should be completed for all incidents related to an 
independent provider.  Management should ensure 
that this is included as part of the new processes 
being put in place. 

however more structured 
engagement with Commissioning 
is still required to achieve 
necessary assurance once a 
major issue is identified.   
 
SAO is represented at KPI 
meetings where provider 
performance is evaluated.  Risk 
assessment for individual 
providers is informed by 
Safeguarding activity. 
Improvement to the Safeguarding 
screening process means that 
those Safeguarding issues best 
dealt with via contract 
management are now notified 
directly to commissioning. 
Protocols are being put in place to 
support this work – to be 
completed by 31/03/17 
 
This work has been delayed by 
the absence of the Head of 
Service in Commissioning 
(replacement shortly to take up 
post and we will prioritise 
discussion on this). 

10.9 Internal Audit recommend that clear, measurable 
performance measures are put in place, with a 
clear reporting structure and a clear way of feeding 
these back to other key stakeholders (e.g. service). 
This could be, for example, time taken between 
receiving a concern and a case conference. 

High Simon Richards, 
Head of Quality 
and Safeguarding 
 

31/03/2016 Action complete 
 
A robust and comprehensive 
Performance Management 
Framework is now in place, with 
measurable performance 
measures (including time taken 
between all key stages and end to 
end timescales). 
 
We have a clear reporting 
structure whereby performance is 
scrutinised on four weekly cycle 
by Care and Support Leadership 

P
age 35



  

Team (CSLT) and reported to 
SASP Board at every meeting. 
CSLT and SASP are responsible 
for feeding information back to 
other key stakeholders (e.g. 
service) as required. 

10.10 Internal Audit recommends that as part of the 
Sheffield processes, a resolution policy is put in 
place.  In addition, it should be clear within the 
processes how and who to report problems to and 
any actions that could be taken as a result of this. 

Medium Simon Richards, 
Head of Quality 
and Safeguarding 
 

31/03/2016 Action complete 
 
We have had a dispute resolution 
policy in place since June 2014.  
It clearly states how and who to 
report problems to and any 
actions that could be taken as a 
result of this. 

10.11 Internal Audit recommends that all job descriptions 
be brought up to date with current arrangements.  
In addition it is recommended that the structure 
chart be reviewed at least annually, with a review 
date recorded on the chart. 

Efficiency/Eff
ectiveness 

Simon Richards, 
Head of Quality 
and Safeguarding 
 

31/03/2017 
 
Revised implementation date: 
30/6/2017 

Action ongoing 
 
We are working on the basis that 
we will update Job Descriptions 
as and when they require review 
as part of wider change (For 
example, the Head of Service JD 
has been reviewed / amended as 
part of the Care and Support 
Leadership Team review).  
 
This will be picked up as part of 
the ongoing redesign of ASC 
(commencing 2017/18), however 
full review for SAO is not 
expected until 2018/19. 
 
Structure chart has been 
reviewed and is up to date. 
 

10.12 Internal Audit recommend that succession 
planning/continuity planning takes place so that all 
the knowledge, experience and expertise that the 
service manager has is made available to the wider 
team and management. 

High 
 

Simon Richards, 
Head of Quality 
and Safeguarding 
 

31/12/2016 Action complete 
 
This was addressed at the point 
which the service manager post 
was deleted as part of the service 
manager MER across C&S 
(summer 2016). 

P
age 36



  

10.13 Internal Audit recommends that management 
identify those staff who have not had an appraisal 
in the last 12 months and ensure that they are 
included in the next round of appraisals. 

High Simon Richards, 
Head of Quality 
and Safeguarding 

30/06/2016 
 
Revised implementation date: 
31/03/17 

Action ongoing 
 
All appraisals are being picked up 
in the current round of appraisals 
(Head of Service has now taken 
over line management 
arrangements for the team, 
following deletion of service 
manager post). 

10.14 It is recommended that formal agreements are in 
place for all partnerships and collaborative 
workings. In addition, it is recommended that all 
external partners have formal communication 
channels in place. 

High Simon Richards, 
Head of Quality 
and Safeguarding 

30/04/2016 Action complete 
 
We have a prospectus in place 
which governs the relationships 
between partners, as well as the 
SY Safeguarding Procedures. 
 
The SASP provides an 
opportunity for formal 
communication channels between 
external partners. 

10.15 Management should ensure that there is a process 
in place to take account of feedback and learning 
from complaints. 

Medium Simon Richards, 
Head of Quality 
and Safeguarding 

31/03/2016 
 
Revised implementation date: 
31/03/17 

Action ongoing 
 
The Safeguarding Customer 
Forum has a regular slot at the 
Operational Board to raise 3 
priorities which the Operational 
Board then responds to.  
 
Complaints are managed through 
the SCC complaints process.  
Although we currently review 
feedback and complaints this 
continues to be a priority area for 
development - there is currently a 
piece of work on improving 
learning from complaints that is 
being carried out across Care and 
Support (this will include 
Safeguarding). 

10.16 It is recommended that all data sharing agreements 
are logged with the Council's Information Sharing 

High Simon Richards, 
Head of Quality 

30/04/2016 
 

Action ongoing 
 

P
age 37



  

Agreements Sharepoint site. and Safeguarding Revised implementation date: 
31/03/17 

The SY Safeguarding Procedures 
includes a section on information 
sharing. This is now saved on the 
ISA SharePoint site.  . 
 
The aim of this section is to 
facilitate and provide clear 
guidance on the exchange of 
personal and sensitive information 
for the investigation and 
responding to suspected Abuse 
and neglect of adults within South 
Yorkshire.  
 
Further work is ongoing to 
develop detailed Information 
Sharing Agreements to support 
the SY Safeguarding Procedures. 

10.17 Management should ensure that at process is put 
place to handle breaches in security, and that all 
staff are made aware of this. 

High Simon Richards, 
Head of Quality 
and Safeguarding 
 

30/04/2016 Action complete 
 
We continue to follow the 
Communities Serious Incident 
process in relation to information 
security breaches. Staff are aware 
of the process and the 
requirement to follow it. 

 
 
11. Mailroom processes (pro-active fraud review) (Resources) (issued to the audit committee 18.4.2016) 

As at July 2016 

This report was issued to management on the 19.02.16 with the latest agreed implementation date of 1.06.16.   

 

As at Jan 2017 

An update on progress made with 1 recommendation reported as ongoing in the last report, is included below.    
 

 

Ref Recommendation Priority Original 
Responsible 
Officer 

Original Implementation Date Updated position  - provided by  
Senior Facilities Manager 
25.11.16 

11.1 Management in P&FM should work with Corporate High Nathan 1.6.2016 Action complete 

P
age 38



  

Mail and Kier management to review and agree all 
Standard Operating Procedures to ensure they are fit 
for purpose and relevant to the service being housed 
at Moorfoot, prior to the transfer of the service to SCC. 
 

Rodgers, 
Head of 
Service, 
Facilities 
Management 

 
Revised implementation date 
31.7.16 

 
All technical and IT changes 
identified in the review have 
been implemented. All standard 
operating procedure have been 
reviewed and updated as 
required. Improved controls 
have been put in place to 
tracked, sensitive, valuable and 
signed for items to improve audit 
trial to the users. 

Internal Audit proposes to remove this item from the tracker. 
 
 
12. Highways Maintenance Client Monitoring Arrangements (Place) (issued to audit committee 5.1.2016) 

As at July 2016 

This report was issued to management on the 15.12.15 with the latest agreed implementation date of 31.3.2016.   A follow-up audit was undertaken in March 
2016 and an update on progress made with recommendation implementation is included below.    

 

As at Jan 2017 

An update on progress made with the 3 ongoing recommendation implementation is included below.   2 recommendations have been implemented and are 
now business as usual, and 1 is still ongoing.  Service management wanted to highlight the significant impact that the current tree campaign has had on the 
highways maintenance programme, and the delays this has caused in implementing all recommendations. 

 

Ref Recommendation Priority Original 
Responsible 
Officer 

Original Implementation Date Updated position provided by the 
Head of Highways Maintenance 
7/11/2016 

12.1 Internal Audit supports the on-going review of the 
monitoring requirements.  In order to ensure that 
appropriate levels of assurance are provided by the 
Contractor's self-monitoring regime, all monitoring 
requirements set out for each contractual Method 
Statement/Performance Monitoring Requirement Table 
should be systematically reviewed and revised where 
necessary.   
 
Appropriate timescales should be set for the 
completion of the exercise and the agreement with the 
contractor for the implementation of any revised 
requirements. 

Medium Head of 
Highways 
Maintenance 
 
 

31/03/2016 
 
 
 
Revised Implementation date 
31.5.16 
 

Action complete – business as 
usual 
 
The action has taken a different 
route.  The Refinancing 
proposal now has as part of it, a 
Contract Monitoring Protocol 
that both parties agree to 
implement, that changes how 
we monitor the contract.  The 
biggest change is that we agree 
to bring failures to their attention 
rather than continue our 

P
age 39



  

previous approach which was to 
let them continue as a check of 
Amey’s self-monitoring.  The 
agreement does however 
require Amey to be more visible 
about how they self-monitor 
which will help.  In addition we 
are reviewing customer contacts 
to identify themes for analysis 
and also any regular failure 
areas are subject to specific 
improvement plans.  Customer 
Service responses in particular 
are included in the refinancing 
agreement. Further we have 
established a new Service 
Operations Panel to review 
deductions and failures and that 
seems to be having a positive 
effect. 

12.2 The Client Team should carry out a periodic review of 
the interface between the two partners' management 
systems so as to ensure that Performance 
Requirements are being accurately transferred and 
reported as part of the assurance process. 

Medium Head of 
Highways 
Maintenance 
 

31/03/2016 
 
Revised Implementation date 
31.5.16 
 

Action complete – business as 
usual 
 
There have been many errors in 
the allocation of customer 
reports to performance 
requirements and so meetings 
have continued plugging away 
at the issue.  Because the 
situation is continuing, as is the 
analysis and findings, it is not 
possible to set a completion 
date and the work is likely to 
carry on for a year or two or 
more.  The key thing is that the 
reviews will continue. 

12.3 Management should continue to review the situation 
and consider the on-going impact of staff vacancies on 
the effectiveness of the Client Team and the 
operational performance of the contract.   
 

High  Head of 
Highways 
Maintenance 
 

31/12/2015 
 
Revised Implementation date 
31.5.17 
 

Action ongoing 
 
The junior positions have been 
filled but the Technical manager 
post is unfilled.   Currently an 

P
age 40



  

Consideration should be given to alternative 
recruitment strategies. 

officer has been seconded from 
the Capital Delivery Service. 
 
The impact of the trees 
campaign has continued and 
worsened and so the focus has 
been on dealing with this.  

 
 
13. Transitions – governance arrangements (Communities) (Issued to the audit committee 27.04.15). 

As at July 2015 

Internal Audit: This report was issued to management on the 17.04.15 with the latest agreed implementation date of 30.09.15.  Therefore an update will be 
provided in the next high opinion update report.   

 

As at January 2016 

 An internal audit follow-up review was scheduled for quarter 3 of 2015/16.  A new Head of Service (Andrew Wheawall) in Communities was appointed in Oct 
2015 and this has led to slippage in the original agreed implementation dates.  He provided a management update on progress. 

 

As at July 2016 

Internal Audit: An update of progress with the 11 recommendations outstanding in the last report was provided.   It should be noted that the findings from this 
review are being addressed as part of a wider corporate project establishing integrated transition arrangements. 

 

As at Jan 2017 

Internal Audit: An update of progress with the 11 recommendations outstanding in the last report was requested.   The Head of Learning Disabilities/Mental 
Health and Transitions, Communities stated that “Communities management are liaising with CYPF management to analyse and determine actions required 
given the changes to the Transitions team in CYPF; who own the process.  A number of the agreed recommendations are ongoing, due to a change of 
direction and a more positive approach to children’s transition to adult social care”.   
 
Given that 8 recommendations are still classed as ongoing, Internal Audit will re-perform a full review of Transitions as part of the 17/18 work programme.  

 

Ref Recommendation Priority Original 
Responsible 
Officer 

Original Implementation Date Updated position - provided by 
Phil Holmes, Director of Adult 
Services, Communities and Dawn 
Walton, Assistant Director of 
Children and Families, CYPF 
(1.4.2017) 

13.1 Service Plans should include clear objectives for the 
Transitions service, which includes targets to be met 
for improvement of the service, and timescales and 
monitoring arrangements for this. Plans should be in 

3 - Medium Anne 
Flanagan, 
Interim Head 
of LD. 

30/06/2014 
 
 
Revised implementation date : 

Action ongoing 
 
Service Plans are currently being 
developed that will fully 

P
age 41



  

line with Corporate and legislative objectives, be 
consistent within CYPF and Communities, and 
should be agreed by management from both 
portfolios. 

Dorne 
Collinson, 
Director, 
Children and 
Families. 

1/4/2017 
 
 

incorporate recommendation 
13.1. Joint objectives will 
incorporate the requirements of 
the Children and Families Act, 
SEND reforms and Care Act that 
have all become live since the 
audit first reported, and provide a 
clear framework to bring CYPF 
and Communities much closer 
together. 
 
The overall intention is to develop 
a 0-25 Service with an 
appropriate degree of integration 
between CYPF and Communities.  
This will be underpinned by single 
processes and procedures. 

13.2 There should be a clear and consistent operational 
plan in place for the Transitions service which details 
the objectives of the service, and shows clear 
pathways for the transition from children's to adult 
social care.  The operational plan should be in line 
with portfolio service plans, and include details of 
roles and responsibilities of portfolios and 
partnerships involved in transitions work, detailed 
performance targets and timescales and 
arrangements for monitoring these.  Progress against 
the plan should be monitored and reported to senior 
management on a regular basis. 

2 - High Anne 
Flanagan, 
Interim Head 
of LD. 
Dorne 
Collinson, 
Director, 
Children and 
Families. 
 

30/06/2015 
 
Revised implementation date : 
1/4/2017 
 

Action ongoing 
 
This plan is being developed with 
the oversight of the Inclusion 
Board chaired by the Executive 
Director of CYPF and attended by 
the Director of Adults Services. 
 
The plan is rooted in the new 
legal requirement for Education, 
Health and Care Plans and formal 
arrangements within those plans 
that enable smooth transition to 
adulthood no later than the young 
person’s 25

th
 birthday. 

 
The operational plan also has full 
input from the CCG to address 
health aspects. CYP, Adults and 
SEN colleagues are currently 
agreeing performance 
management targets and 
timescales, which will be routinely 
reported. 
 

P
age 42



  

Both Childrens’ and Adults 
Safeguarding Boards will also 
have oversight of this important 
area of work. The Independent 
Chair, who covers both Boards, is 
keen for transition to be a priority. 
 
The transitions service will align 
with the SEN team to ensure a 
clear pathway for individuals with 
an EHCP in Sheffield. Adult 
Social Care will provide support to 
this agenda and will have two 
designated social work posts 
within the team to improve 
transitions from the age of 14. 

13.3 Performance monitoring should include specific 
outcomes for which performance can be measured 
against; for example number of days it should take to 
complete an initial assessment against actual time 
taken.  Outcomes should be set by management, 
monitored at least quarterly and used to inform 
service improvement and staff training and 
development.  Results of performance monitoring, 
and any action taken to improve this should be 
reported to senior management. 

2 - High Anne 
Flanagan, 
Interim Head 
of LD. 
Dorne 
Collinson, 
Director, 
Children and 
Families. 
 

30/06/2015 
 
Revised implementation date : 
1/4/2017 
 

Action ongoing 
 
A jointly owned integrated 
performance management 
framework is being developed as 
above, underpinned by an 
integrated governance structure. 
 
The Inclusion Board already 
receives regular formal reporting 
in relation to young people going 
through transition which combines 
hard data (e.g. volume of 
demand, time taken) with 
discussion and actions in relation 
to workforce development. 

13.4 There should be a risk management plan in place for 
the Transitions Team which identifies key risks that 
affect the service and its partners/stakeholders.  The 
plan should be in line with corporate requirements 
and include actions to be taken to mitigate risks, 
timescales and monitoring arrangements.  The plan 
should be reviewed for adequacy at least quarterly. 

3 - Medium Anne 
Flanagan, 
Interim Head 
of LD. 
Dorne 
Collinson, 
Director, 
Children and 
Families. 

30/06/2015 
 
Revised implementation date : 
1/4/2017 
 

Action ongoing 
 
The Inclusion Board operates a 
risk log and reports on a highlight 
/ exception basis to enable clear 
escalation of issues and 
development of remedial plans. 
 
The integrated performance 

P
age 43



  

management framework 
described above will also 
incorporate a more detailed risk 
log with risk mitigation actions. 

13.5 There should be documented processes and 
procedures in place which detail the different 
pathways for service users transitioning to adult 
social care.  This should include roles and 
responsibilities of each partner and portfolio, how 
each service interacts with each other and the 
service user, and timescales for each stage of the 
process.  Procedures should be reviewed by the 
Transitions Working Group (or similar multi-agency 
group) to ensure consistency across portfolios.  As 
transitions staff work with children's and adult social 
care systems, a training and development plan 
should also be considered to ensure that information 
is recorded appropriately. 

1 - Critical Anne 
Flanagan, 
Interim Head 
of LD. 
Dorne 
Collinson, 
Director, 
Children and 
Families. 

 30/09/2015 
 
Revised implementation date : 
1/4/2017 
 

Action outstanding 
 
This is accepted. The introduction 
of new legislative requirements 
(as referred to in 13.1) has 
delayed this piece of work while 
strategy and performance 
management framework are 
being put into place. 
 
The clear mandate from the 
Inclusion Board is to develop a 0-
25 Service with an appropriate 
degree of integration between 
CYPF and Communities. This will 
be underpinned by single 
processes and procedures. 

13.6 The service responsible for agreeing costs that are 
generated from transitions activity should ensure that 
arrangements for financial management and 
responsibility are documented and agreed by 
management.  This includes identifying responsible 
officers, and budget monitoring arrangements. 

2 - High Anne 
Flanagan, 
Interim Head 
of LD. 
Dorne 
Collinson, 
Director, 
Children and 
Families. 

31/03/2015 
 
Revised implementation date : 
30/9/2016 
 

Action complete 
 
This is currently implemented 
through the Adult LD resource 
panel, where all young people 
over the age of 18 are presented 
regardless of whether they have 
not come across to be case 
managed by Adult LD.  
 
Further work is underway to 
review Panel processes and more 
fully incorporate SEN, Education 
and CCG into the current Joint 
Commissioning Panel 
arrangements. 
 
This will also include cross-cutting 
finance and administrative 
support to record, monitor and 

P
age 44



  

review packages effectively. 

13.7 There should be an agreed procedure in place for 
identifying and monitoring spend on service users 
with a transitional support plan.  This can be used to 
identify and monitor impact on the adult social care 
purchasing budget. 

2 - High Anne 
Flanagan, 
Interim Head 
of LD. 
Dorne 
Collinson, 
Director, 
Children and 
Families. 

31/03/2015 
 
Revised implementation date : 
30/9/2016 
 

Action complete 
 
CYPF and Communities now 
share an Assistant Head of 
Finance who is well-positioned to 
provide this overview. 
 
The focus of joint work between 
Communities and CYPF is on 
developing the right practice in 
line with national legislation and 
guidance to maximise both 
independence and opportunity.  

13.8 Transitions management should undertake long-term 
financial forecasting of service users care needs.  
This would assist in giving a picture of who is likely to 
use the transitions service in the future, and aid with 
financial planning of the service. 

2 - High Anne 
Flanagan, 
Interim Head 
of LD. 
Dorne 
Collinson, 
Director, 
Children and 
Families. 

30/06/2015 
 
Revised implementation date : 
1/4/2017 
 

Action ongoing 
 
Joint commissioning 
arrangements between, Health, 
CYP, Education and Communities 
are incorporating this approach 
and will include support from 
finance colleagues who, as 
above, cover both CYP and 
Adults. An integrated approach to 
commissioning supported by life 
cycle planning will be 
implemented to achieve a more 
effective profiling of long term 
support needs. 

13.9 A communication plan should be developed which 
identifies key partners and stakeholders and how the 
service work with them.  The plan should identify 
what meetings take place and how often, officers 
responsible for communication, and types of 
communication that take place.  The plan should be 
reviewed periodically to ensure adequacy. 

3 - Medium Anne 
Flanagan, 
Interim Head 
of LD. 
Dorne 
Collinson, 
Director, 
Children and 
Families. 

30/06/2015 
 
Revised implementation date : 
1/4/2017 
 

Action ongoing 
 
The Inclusion Board is comprised 
of a wide range of stakeholders, 
including from within CYPF, 
Communities, the NHS, schools 
and other involved bodies. The 
Inclusion Board is developing a 
communication plan that reaches 
the wider populations that Board 
Members represent. 
 

P
age 45



  

The Inclusion Board has 
recognised that more needs to be 
done to engage with young 
people and family members, and 
is developing plans to do this. 
 
At a casework level, a significant 
number of young people have 
recently transitioned to the adults 
service with clear communication 
to support this. However more 
work needs to be done on further 
communication to underpin the 
new policies and ways of working 
described above. 

13.10 Results of feedback from service users and other 
stakeholders should be collated and reported to 
management.  Any actions taken to inform service 
planning, or staff training and development as a 
result of feedback should be documented and 
agreed. 

2 - High Anne 
Flanagan, 
Interim Head 
of LD. 
Dorne 
Collinson, 
Director, 
Children and 
Families. 

30/06/2015 
 
Revised implementation date : 
1/4/2017 
 

Action ongoing 
 
Complaints from young people 
and their families involved in 
transition have dropped over 
recent times. This reflects some 
of the recent improvements in this 
area. However further work is 
required to ensure that feedback 
from young people and their 
families is systematically 
gathered, listened to and drives 
improvements as part of a “you 
said, we did” culture. 
 
Communities have developed 
Service Improvement Forums for 
both family carers and people with 
a learning disability. These forums 
are chaired by service users or 
carers and run to their agendas. 
Feedback about transitions has 
already featured on both these 
agendas.  
 
CYPF: Have a strong Parent 
Carer Forum that provides good 

P
age 46



  

feedback on user and carer 
experience. This is supported 
through a range of individual child 
/ young person’s participation 
work both internally and externally 
from the council and voluntary 
sector providers. 

13.11 Processes and procedures for recording information 
for service users transitioning from children's to adult 
social care should be documented and reviewed by 
management from both portfolios for adequacy and 
consistency.  It should be ensured that all transitions 
staff are adequately trained in using Carefirst and 
Careassess for recording information in both children 
and adult social care capacities. 

2 - High Anne 
Flanagan, 
Interim Head 
of LD. 
Dorne 
Collinson, 
Director, 
Children and 
Families. 

30/06/2015 
 
Revised implementation date : 
31/12/2016 
 

Action complete 
 
Communities and CYPF are 
currently expanding this training 
due to changes in the structure of 
both services that have increased 
the number of people involved. 
This is positive in terms of 
increasing the number of staff 
who are engaged in transitions 
work, and is being accompanied 
by appropriate training and 
support. 
The Council will be tendering to 
replace the current systems in 
operation. CYPF and 
Communities are working 
together on this. The new system 
will be jointly designed and greatly 
enhance the success of an 
integrated approach to transitions. 
 

 
 
14. External Funding (corporate review) (Issued to the audit committee 01.06.15). 

As at July 2015 

Internal Audit: This report was issued to management on the 07.05.15, with the latest agreed implementation date of 30.09.15.  Therefore an update will be 
provided in the next high opinion update report. 

 

As at January 2016 

An internal audit follow-up review is scheduled for quarter 1 of 2016/17.  A key challenge with regard to external funding is getting managers across portfolios 
to comply with the process, this has resulted in slippage in some of the original implementation dates.  An update was provided by service management.  

 

As at July 2016 

P
age 47



  

Internal Audit: An update of progress with the 6 recommendations outstanding in the last report was provided.  

 

As at Jan 2017 

Internal Audit: An update of progress with the 4 recommendations outstanding in the last report is provided below.   3 recommendations have been 
implemented, and 1 has elements that are still ongoing. 

 

Ref Recommendation Priority Original 
Responsible 
Officer 

Original Implementation Date Updated position  - provided by 
External Funding Manager 
25.11.16 

14.1 It is recommended that where appropriate approval 
has not been sought for external funding and where 
there is a lack of clarity with regards to the key funding 
arrangements (including match funding arrangements), 
this is clearly detailed and escalated to the relevant 
Executive Director/Director for information and 
appropriate action to be taken (where necessary). 
 
The External Team should continue to publicise the 
process across the Council with periodic updates 
placed on the intranet. 

High Finance 
Manager, 
External 
Funding 

Management actions in progress 
at the time of the discussion 
meeting.  Actions to be confirmed 
as satisfactory at the time of the 
follow-up review. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Revised implementation date  
31.3.17  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Budget holders requiring grant 
sign off at a late stage with no 
grant report are refused and 
required to produce a report 
before sign off is undertaken. If 
the grant is time critical and there 
is a risk of the grant being lost 
then External Funding will review 
the grant terms and conditions 
and advise the applicant 
accordingly and point out the risks 
of sign up without approval with 
the requirement for a 
retrospective report if needed.  
 
Where necessary, excessive 
delays in Leader’s scheme 
reports are progressed with 
appropriate level of management. 
– Action complete 
 
A presentation on the operation of 
the Leader’s Scheme of 
Delegation has now been 
delivered to Resources 
Leadership Team. Further 
presentations will be delivered to 
all Portfolio Leadership Teams, 
during December and January – 
Action ongoing 
 
Legal and Governance have 

P
age 48



  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Revised implementation date  
31.3.17  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Revised implementation date : 
31.3.17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

recently changed the Leaders’ 
Scheme approval levels (June 
2016) so that the block approval 
report for annually recurrent 
grants, previously intended for 
Cabinet, can be signed off by the 
Cabinet Member. The report was 
approved by the Cabinet Member 
for Finance and Resources in 
August 2016. – Action complete 
 
In agreement with Legal, a 
speedier approval process has 
been developed whereby new 
non-EU grants below £100k can 
be signed off more efficiently 
without diminishing Finance and 
Legal controls.  The scheme has 
now been submitted for 
management approval and will go 
live once it has been signed off.  
 
Intranet updates are under review 
and are something that External 
Funding will be looking into during 
2016/17 as part of the wider 
process review. A number of 
External Funding process reviews 
in higher priority areas have 
already been undertaken resulting 
in a delay to this one.  In the 
interim new grant applicants are 
directed to the SCC’s web page 
that explains how the Leader’s 
Scheme works and the 
documents needed to be 
completed for grant applications. 
Action ongoing 
 

14.2 A timescale should be set for the implementation of the 
use of SharePoint for recording all key grant funding 
information. 

High 
 

Finance 
Manager, 
External 

September 2015 
 
 

Alternative action completed 
 
Given the specialist and technical 

P
age 49



  

 
A review should be taken on legacy arrangements 
across the Council and how these can potentially be 
included on SharePoint using a cost benefit analysis to 
assess the cost of doing this with potential claw back 
etc. 

Funding  nature of the project along with 
resource pressures and the 
increased volume of new grant 
workloads, SharePoint is not able 
to be implemented during 
2016/17.  However, there is full 
commitment to the use of 
SharePoint. 
 
In order to minimise risks in the 
interim, current electronic record 
retention processes have been 
reviewed and there have been 
improved checks and controls 
made on all current grant record 
keeping with a particular focus 
and emphasis on record retention 
for current EU projects.  
 

14.3 It is recommended that Project Managers charged with 
managing external funding sign to confirm that they 
understand their roles and responsibilities in relation to 
the external funding scheme at the start of the process 
when they take on their role.   
 
Project Managers who have failed in their duty to 
administer/manage external funding appropriately 
should not be permitted to continue in their role until 
they have received appropriate training.  In serious 
cases, it may be necessary to remove them from 
managing the external funding schemes completely.  
Where officers have failed in their duties, this should 
be reported to the relevant Director/Executive Director 
(as this is either a capability or a disciplinary issue). 

High 
 

Finance 
Manager, 
External 
Funding 

September 2015 
 
 
 
 
 
Revised implementation date : 
31.12.16 

Action complete 
 
A new updated grant claims 
checklist template, where the 
specific grant roles of each party 
including Project Managers are 
more clearly defined, and which 
requires all parties to sign has 
been developed and is now being 
used. 
 
 

14.4 It is recommended that a notice is included on the 
grant claim authorisation checklist (which the project 
manager must sign off) that states that if an officer 
knowingly completes a claim which contains false 
information; this can potentially be treated as a fraud 
matter.  It should be stated that it is the manager's 
responsibility to obtain, read and comply with all the 

2 - High Finance 
Manager, 
External 
Funding 

June 2015 
 
Revised implementation date : 
31.8.16 
 
 

Action complete 
 
This recommendation has been 
adopted and is now operational. 

P
age 50



  

grant conditions.  Where they cannot provide this 
assurance, they should seek advice immediately from 
the External Funding Team. 

 
 
15. Statutory Responsibilities Health Check (Resources).  (Issued to the audit committee 14.01.15). 

As at July 2015 

Internal Audit: This report was issued to management on the 12.01.15, with the latest agreed implementation date of 31.03.15.  An update of progress to date 
is provided below from the interim director of Legal and Governance. A follow up will be undertaken as part of the 15/16 audit plan. 

 
As at January 2016 

An Internal Audit follow-up review was undertaken in October 2015.  2 of the 8 recommendations have been actioned and the remaining 6 are ongoing for 
completion as part of the Annual Governance Statement production for 2015/16.   

 
As at July 2016 

An update of progress with the 6 recommendations stated as being ‘on-going’ in the last report was provided.  

 
As at January 2017 

An update of progress with the 2 recommendations stated as being ‘on-going’ in the last report is provided below.   

 
Ref 
 

 

Recommendation  Priority Original 
Responsible Officer  

Original Implementation 
Date 

Update provided from Director of 
Legal & Governance as at 
11.11.16 

15.1 Having established registers of statutory 
responsibility, directors should ensure that these are 
considered as part of the monthly governance 
arrangements. Compliance with statutory 
responsibilities should be incorporated in to the 
framework of governance meetings covering service 
managers, heads of service and their respective 
directors. 
 

High All executive 
directors 
 

31.03.15 
 
Revised implementation 
date 30.06.17 
 

Action ongoing 
 
The new guidance is prepared 
and will be actioned when the 
Director of Policy Performance 
and Communications (PPC) 
issues revised service planning 
guidance. PPC decided not to 
issue revised guidance until the 
strategic business plan was 
completed. As completion has 
taken longer than anticipated it 
is likely to be with the guidance 
issued for the 17/18 business 
planning cycle. 

15.2 All portfolios and services should monitor High All executive 31.03.15 Action ongoing 

P
age 51



  

 
 
16. Delivery of Highways Schemes (Place) (Issued to the audit committee 08.04.14). 

As at 25
th
 November 2014 

Internal Audit: This report was issued to management on the 19.03.14, with the latest agreed implementation date of 30.09.14.  The Director of Regeneration 
and Development Services, Dave Caulfield, provided an updated position against the recommendations and this is provided below.  
 
Additionally, he wished it to be recorded that a firm of consultants, Turner & Townsend, were appointed by Sheffield City Council in August 2014 to undertake a 
review of the council’s approach to delivering its non-core transport capital programme (i.e. excluding the Streets Ahead PFI capital maintenance programme). 
This end to end review has just reported and a full change programme will be implemented over the next 6 months including picking up some early wins in the 
first three months.  The remaining outstanding internal audit recommendations will be captured as part of implementing the change programme. 

 

As at March 2015 

A follow up audit was undertaken in March 2015.  Internal audit was concerned that adequate progress had not been made against the original 
recommendations. The majority of the outstanding recommendations relate to the on-going change programme resulting from the independent review of the 
delivery of highways schemes.  However, it should be noted that over and above this the following recommendations remained outstanding: 
 

• The analysis of available and allocated funding,  

• Forward programme capital approvals, 

• The block procurement strategy and contract waiver and 

• “Tracker” reporting to Commercial Services  
Revised deadlines have been agreed with transport, traffic and parking services (TTPS) management for those outstanding recommendations. 
Internal Audit met with the Assistant Director of Finance on 14.05.15 to get a finance view.  With regard to action no 14.3, it was stated that funding had been 

compliance with statutory responsibilities in the 
context of staff changes and reduced funding levels.  
This should incorporate: 

• As part of the annual service business planning 
process, identifying the service costs required to 
ensure compliance; 

• The consideration of alternative strategies for 
delivering compliance; 

• The use of appropriate performance indicators 
where applicable to aid monitoring; & 

• Incorporation of compliance monitoring in to the 
monthly governance framework;  

Over and above this, executive directors should 
report to EMT annually at the culmination of the 
service business planning process, setting out the 
impact of reduced resources on compliance with 
statutory responsibilities. 

directors 

 
 

 
Revised implementation 
date 30.06.17 
 

 
To form part of guidance 
detailed at 13.5 above. 
 
 

P
age 52



  

secured for the 15/16 projects but only after the intervention of finance. 

 

As at Jan 2016 

A management update has been provided for the 9 outstanding recommendations from the last report.  Management stated that 6 had been actioned and 
evidence to support this was provided to internal audit.  3 actions are ongoing and are due for completion by the end of the financial year.   
 

 

As at Jul 2016 

A management update was provided for the 3 outstanding recommendations from the last report.  It should be noted that the findings raised in this review are 
being considered as part of the wider Business Like Place programme.   

 

As at Jan 2017 

An update has been obtained from the Place SharePoint recommendation tracking system for the 3 outstanding recommendations from the last report.   All 
have now been completed. 
 

 

Ref Recommendation Priority Original 

Responsible 

Officer 

Original Implementation Date Updated position taken from 

the Place SharePoint 

recommendation tracking site 

8.11.16. 

16.1 The Information Commissioner should be invited to 
review the automated number place recognition (ANPR) 
data-sharing arrangements prior to their 
implementation.   
 
Subject to the Commissioner's approval, all of the 
parties (i.e the four south Yorkshire local authorities and 
South Yorkshire Police) should enter in to a formal 
arrangement reflecting the approved procedures for 
each authority. 

Medium Highways 
Network 
Manager 
 

30.09.14 

 
 
 
Revised implementation date 
31.07.16. 
 
 
 

Action complete 
 
The Information 
Commissioner did not visit 
Sheffield.  The data sharing 
agreement was reviewed by 
SCC Legal Team, SYP Legal 
Team and the legal teams 
from the other districts before 
being signed off.  Data 
sharing has now 
commenced. 

16.2 TT&PS management should meet with the Commercial 
Services construction category manager to determine 
the levels and frequency of financial data to be provided 
to him.  Once determined, arrangements should be put 
in place to allocate responsibility and set up timetables 
to facilitate this information. 

Medium Head of TT&PS 
 

31.05.14 
 
 
Revised implementation date 
31.08.16. 
 

Action complete  
 
The TTAPS Programme 
Manager met with 
Commercial Service category 
manager to resolve and 

P
age 53



  

agree a way forward.  The 
Corporate Capital Gateway 
Process includes contract 
awards with procurement 
strategies by business case.  
The hierarchy within QTier is 
being changed to allow 
reporting at business case 
level and the whole TTAPS 
capital programme will be 
visible within QTier together 
with associated reports. 

16.3 The previously recommended operational review (point 
14.6) should consider the operational structures 
required for the effective delivery of highways schemes.  
Specifically, whether current structures provide the most 
effective model or whether these give rise to 
bottlenecks or un-necessary duplication.  
Once the structure has been clarified, specific roles and 
responsibilities for all service areas and individual 
officers should be developed and issued, so as to avoid 
any ambiguity over those responsibilities or the 
expectations placed on individuals. 

Critical Head of TT&PS 
 

30.06.14 
 
 
 
Revised implementation date 
31.12.16. 

Action complete 
 
This is a legacy action that 
was completed by January 
2015.  The notes at the time 
included: RDS Director and 
Interim Head of TTAPS 
currently reviewing the 
operational structures and 
contractual arrangements 
relating to the Streets Ahead 
core contract – as part of the 
outcome of from the Turner 
and Townsend capital 
programme delivery review. 
 
June 2016 Update: TTAPS 
Capital Programme Manager 
has been appointed for over 
a year which has clarified 
roles.  Since the audit was 
undertake staff have matured 
into their roles and are 
performing at appropriate 
levels to deliver the capital 
programme effectively. 
 

Internal Audit proposes to remove this item from the tracker. 

P
age 54



 

 

 
 

 
Report of:   The Monitoring Officer/Director of Legal and  
    Governance 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Date:    12 January 2017 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject:   Update on Standards Complaints 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report:  Dave Ross, Democratic Services 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  
 
The report provides a summary of the complaints considered under the 
Procedure for Dealing with Standards Complaints. 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendations: 
 
The Committee is asked to note the contents of the report. 
 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers:  
 

 
Category of Report: OPEN 
  
 

 
   

 
Audit and Standards 

Committee Report 

Agenda Item 7

Page 55



 

 

Statutory and Council Policy Checklist 
 

Financial Implications 
 

NO Cleared by: 
 

Legal Implications 
 

NO Cleared by: 
 

Equality of Opportunity Implications 

NO Cleared by: 
 

Tackling Health Inequalities Implications 
 

NO 
 

Human rights Implications 
 

NO: 
 

Environmental and Sustainability implications 
 

NO 
 

Economic impact 
 

NO 
 

Community safety implications 
 

NO 
 

Human resources implications 
 

NO 
 

Property implications 
 

NO 
 

Area(s) affected 
 

Not applicable 
 

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?    

NO 
 

Press release 
 

NO 

Page 56



 

 

UPDATE ON STANDARDS COMPLAINTS 
 
1.0 Introduction 
  
1.1 This report provides a summary of the outcome of the complaints considered under the 

Procedure for Dealing with Standards Complaints regarding City, Parish and Town 
Councillors and Co-opted Members that was adopted by Full Council at its meeting on 
25 March 2015.  

  
1.2 The Localism Act 2011 requires Councils to promote high standards of Member 

conduct, adopt a Code of Conduct and introduce a process for investigating complaints. 
  
1.3 The Procedure sets out how the Council will deal with a complaint alleging a breach of 

the Members’ Code of Conduct. To assist the Monitoring Officer and this Committee in 
dealing with complaints, the Council appointed three Independent Persons (Stuart 
Carvell, Marvyn Moore and David Waxman). 

  
1.4 The first stage of the Procedure is the assessment of the complaint. Following 

consultation with the Independent Person, the Monitoring Officer will consider if the 
allegation constitutes a potential breach of the Code of Conduct and take one of the 
following courses of action:- 

  
 1) Take no action or 
 2) Take other action through informal resolution or 
 3) Refer the matter for investigation 
  
2.0 Summary of Complaints 
  
2.1 Since the introduction of the new Procedure last year, 27 formal complaints have been 

received and their outcome is as follows:- 
  
 Take no action - 16 
 Informal resolution - 3 
 Referred for investigation - 0 
  
 6 complaints are still to be concluded and 2 complaints were not accepted due to a 

significant amount of time having passed since the alleged incidents took place. 
  
2.2 Of the 27 complaints considered, 14 were submitted by members of the public, 10 by 

councillors and 3 by community organisations. As seven of the complaints related to the 
same issue they were dealt with as a single complaint. 

  
3.0 Recommendation 
  
3.1 The Committee is asked to note the contents of the report. 
  
  
 Gillian Duckworth, 
 Monitoring Officer/Director of Legal and Governance 

Page 57



 

 

 

Page 58



25 March 2015 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL  
 
PROCEDURE FOR DEALING WITH COMPLAINTS REGARDING CITY, PARISH 
AND TOWN COUNCILLORS AND CO-OPTED MEMBERS 
  
1. Introduction 
  
1.1 Under the Localism Act 2011, the Council has duty to promote and maintain 

high standards of conduct for its elected and co-opted members and have 
arrangements in place to deal with complaints. 

  
1.2 This Procedure sets out how the Council will deal with a complaint alleging a 

breach of the Members’ Code of Conduct by:-  
  
 • Sheffield City Councillors or co-opted members of the Council  
 • Bradfield Parish Councillors 
 • Ecclesfield Parish Councillors 
 • Stocksbridge Town Councillors 
  
 (In this Procedure the term ‘Member’ is used to describe a Councillor or Co-

opted Member) 
  
1.3 In dealing with complaints we will be fair to both the complainant and 

Member and progress matters in accordance with the timescales set out in 
the Procedure. Complaints will be handled in the strictest confidence at all 
times. 

  
2. Monitoring Officer 
  
2.1 Gillian Duckworth, Director of Legal and Governance, is the Council’s 

Monitoring Officer. This is a statutory role, responsible for ensuring that the 
Council, its Members and officers carry out their functions in a lawful and 
ethical manner. The role includes supporting the Standards Committee and 
the three Independent Persons in dealing with complaints alleging a breach 
of the Members’ Code of Conduct. 

  
3. Independent Persons 
  
3.1 The Council appoints Independent Persons from outside the Council to assist 

the Monitoring Officer and Standards Committee in considering complaints. 
Sheffield currently has appointed three Independent Persons - Stuart Carvell, 
Marvyn Moore and David Waxman. 

  
3.2 The Independent Person must be consulted at various stages in the 

complaints process and also before the Standards Committee makes a 
finding as to whether a member has failed to comply with the Code of 
Conduct and decides on action to be taken in respect of a Member. 

  
4. Making a Complaint 
  
4.1 Complaints alleging a breach of the Members’ Code of Conduct should be 

Page 59



25 March 2015 

made in writing using the complaint form and sent to Gillian Duckworth, 
Monitoring Officer, Sheffield City Council, Town Hall, Sheffield S1 2HH or 
email gillian.duckworth@sheffield.gov.uk. The complaint form is available 
from:- 

  
 • Website -  www.sheffield.gov.uk/standardscommittee  
 • Email - committee@sheffield.gov.uk 
 • Phone - 0114 273 5033 
  
4.2 If you need advice or assistance in submitting a complaint please contact 

Dave Ross in Democratic Services (email dave.ross@sheffield.gov.uk or 
phone 0114 273 5033). 

  
4.3 Details of the complaint, including the name of the complainant, will be 

shared with the Member. The complainant can request on the complaint form 
that their identity is kept confidential. Requests for confidentiality will be 
considered by the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Independent 
Person. 

  
4.4 Anonymous complaints will not be considered. 
  
5.0 Acknowledging the Complaint/Informing the Member 
  
5.1 The Monitoring Officer will acknowledge receipt of the complaint in writing 

within 5 working days and provide the complainant with a copy of this 
Procedure and the Code of Conduct. 

  
5.2 The Member will be informed in writing within 5 working days that a complaint 

has been made about them. This will include the name of the complainant 
and details of the complaint. They will also receive a copy of this Procedure 
and the Code of Conduct. To assist the Monitoring Officer in assessing the 
complaint, the Member will be invited to submit within 10 working days a 
written statement of fact in response to the complaint. 

  
5.3 The Monitoring Officer will also inform the Leader of the relevant political 

Group, Group Whip and Chair of the Standards Committee that a complaint 
has been received and provide a summary of the complaint. 

  
5.4 Where a complaint relates to a Parish or Town Councillor, the Monitoring 

Officer will also inform the Clerk of that Council of the name of the Member 
and details of the complaint. The Clerk will also be kept informed of the 
progress and the outcome of the complaint. 

  
6. Assessment by the Monitoring Officer 
  
6.1 Before assessment of the complaint, it may be necessary for the Monitoring 

Officer to request further information or clarification from the complainant 
and/or Member. 

  
6.2 The Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Independent Person, will 

consider the complaint, any remedy sought by the complainant, any written 
statement of fact submitted by the Member and any other information 

Page 60



25 March 2015 

obtained. In assessing the complaint, the Monitoring Officer will take into 
account:- 

  
 • The seriousness of the allegation. 

 

• The effectiveness of the remedies available. 
 

• If a significant amount of time has elapsed since the events which 
are the subject of the complaint. 

 

• If the allegation relates to a cultural or recurring issue relating to 
standards within the Council.  
 

• If the matter should be dealt with by some other method, e.g. police 
investigation. 
 

• If complaints have been made about the Member relating to similar 
issues in the past. 
 

• The impact on the complainant or reputation to the Council caused 
by the conduct. 
 

• If the complaint appears to be trivial or vexatious or is part of a 
series of complaints from the complainant. 
 

• Whether the conduct occurred during political debate or could be 
regarded as a political expression of views or opinion. 

  
6.3 Following consultation with the Independent Person, the Monitoring Officer 

will then consider if the allegation constitutes a potential breach of the Code 
of Conduct and take one of the following courses of action:- 

  
 (1) Take no action or 
 (2) Take other action through informal resolution or 
 (3) Refer the matter for investigation 
  
6.4 The complainant and the Member will be informed in writing within 5 working 

days of the outcome and the reasons for the decision. 
  
6.5 Where a complaint is not referred for investigation, the Monitoring Officer will 

seek to deal with the matter within 8 weeks. 
  
7. Informal Resolution by the Monitoring Officer 
  
7.1 Where the Monitoring Officer has decided to take other action this will seek to 

resolve the complaint informally and without determining if an actual breach 
of the Code has taken place. Both the complainant and Member will have to 
agree to the outcome of any informal resolution. 

  
7.2 The Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Independent Person, may 

take any of the following actions:- 

Page 61



25 March 2015 

  
 • Take such steps as they think appropriate to prevent a future potential 

breach of the Code including training, guidance and introducing or 
amending policies/protocols. 

  
 • Ask the Whips to address the issue raised within their political parties 

or with an individual Member. 
  
 • Mediate between the parties involved to resolve the issues. 
  
 • Seek an apology from the Member. 
  
 • Any other action capable of resolving the complaint. 
  
7.3 The complainant and Member will be informed in writing of the outcome of 

any informal resolution within 5 working days. The Chair of the Standards 
Committee and relevant Group Leader and Group Whip will also be informed 
that the complaint has been resolved. 

  
7.4 Where a complaint relates to a Parish or Town Councillor, the Monitoring 

Officer will also inform the Clerk of that Council that the complaint has been 
resolved. 

  
7.5 Where it has not been possible to agree an informal resolution, the 

Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Independent Person, will refer the 
matter for investigation and inform the complainant and Member within 5 
working days. 

  
8. Investigation 
  
8.1 If a complaint has been referred for investigation, the Monitoring Officer, in 

consultation with the Independent Person, will appoint a person to undertake 
the investigation and this may be either a Council Officer or an outside agent, 
depending on the complexity and subject of the complaint. 

  
8.2 The Investigating Officer will inform the complainant and Member of the 

process and proposed timescale of the investigation. The investigation may 
involve interviewing both parties and possibly other witnesses, together with 
reviewing any relevant documentation or paperwork.  

  
8.3 The Investigating Officer will prepare a draft report on the outcome of the 

investigation and provide the complainant and Member with a copy for review 
and comment. 

  
8.4 The Investigating Officer will submit a final version of the report to the 

Monitoring Officer that will make a finding that either (a) there has been a 
failure to comply with the Code of Conduct or (b) there has not been a failure 
to comply with the Code of Conduct. The final report will also be sent to the 
complainant and Member. 

  
8.5 The Monitoring Officer will submit the Investigating Officer’s report to the 

Page 62



25 March 2015 

Consideration Sub-Committee.  
  
8.6 An investigation will be completed within 12 weeks of a referral by the 

Monitoring Officer. The Consideration Committee will meet within one month 
of the final report being submitted to the Monitoring Officer. 

  
9. Consideration Sub-Committee 
  
9.1 The Sub-Committee will consider the Investigating Officer’s report and, after 

taking the views of the Independent Person into account, can:- 
  
 (a) take no action where there is no evidence of a failure to comply with the 

Code of Conduct or  
  
 (b) take no action where there is no evidence of a failure to comply with the 

Code of Conduct but make a recommendation to the authority with a view to 
promoting and maintaining high conduct of standards in general (e.g. 
proposed changes to internal procedures or training for Members) or 

  
 (c) ask the Monitoring Officer, where possible, to seek a local resolution to 

the complaint or 
  
 (d) refer the matter to a Standards Committee Hearing. 
  
9.2 The complainant and Member will be informed in writing within 5 working 

days of the outcome and the reasons for the decision. 
  
10. Local Resolution 
  
10.1 Where the investigation finds evidence of failure to comply with the Code of 

Conduct, the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Independent Person, 
may attempt a local resolution, avoiding the necessity of a hearing, and take 
any of the following actions:- 

  
 • Take such steps as they think appropriate to prevent a future potential 

breach of the Code including training, guidance and introducing or 
amending policies/protocols. 
 

• Ask the Whips to address the issue raised within their political parties 
or with an individual Member. 
 

• Mediate between the parties involved to resolve the issues. 
 

• Seek an apology from the Member 
 

• Any other action capable of resolving the complaint 
 

10.2 Both the complainant and Member will have to agree to the outcome of any 
local resolution. 

  
10.3 The Monitoring Officer will inform the complainant and Member in writing 

Page 63



25 March 2015 

within 5 working days of the outcome of any agreed local resolution. 
  
10.4 If a local resolution has not been possible, the Monitoring Officer, in 

consultation with the Independent Person and Chair of the Standards 
Committee, will refer the matter to a Standards Committee Hearing and 
inform the complainant and Member in writing within 5 working days. 

  

11. Standards Committee Hearing 
  
11.1 The Standards Committee Hearing Sub-Committee comprises 3 Councillors 

and 1 non-voting co-opted Independent Member. 
  

11.2 The Sub-Committee will meet within two months of a referral by the 
Consideration Sub-Committee to consider the allegation and Investigating 
Officer’s report and make clear findings as to the facts of the matter and 
whether a breach of the Code of Conduct has occurred. 

  
11.3 The Hearing Sub-Committee will meet in public unless it decides that all or 

part of the meeting should be held in private in accordance with the Access 
to Information Procedure Rules in the Council’s Constitution. 

  
11.4 In advance of the Hearing there will be a pre-hearing process to allow 

matters at the Hearing to be dealt with more fairly and economically. 
  
11.5 The complainant and Member will be given the opportunity to attend the 

Hearing and present witnesses. The Monitoring Officer, Investigating Officer 
and Independent Person will also attend. The procedure at the Hearing will 
include:- 

  
 • Making findings of fact 
 • Deciding if there has been a breach of the Code of Conduct 
 • Consider the remedies/sanctions available if there is a finding that the 

Member has breached of the Code of Conduct 
  
11.6 Full details of the pre-hearing and hearing process are set out in the 

Procedure at Hearings. The Member and complainant will be provided with a 
copy of the Procedure. 

  
11.7 A Finding of No Breach of the Code of Conduct 
  
11.7.1 If the Sub-Committee finds that the Member did not breach the Code of 

Conduct no further action will be taken in respect of the complaint. However, 
the Sub-Committee can make a recommendation to the authority with a view 
to promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct in general (e.g. 
proposed changes to internal procedures or training for Members). 

  
11.8 A Finding of a Breach of the Code of Conduct 
  
11.8.1 If the Sub-Committee finds that a breach of the Code of Conduct has 

occurred they may make any of the following recommendations and may 
specify to whom they wish them to be directed:- 

  

Page 64



25 March 2015 

 • Recommending to the Member’s Group Leader (or in the case of un-
grouped members, recommend to Council or to Committees) that he/she 
be removed from any or all Committees or Sub-Committees of the 
Council or Shadow Portfolio responsibilities. 
 

• Recommending to the Leader of the Council that the member be removed 
from the Cabinet, or removed from particular Portfolio responsibilities. 
 

• Instructing the Monitoring Officer to arrange training for the member. 
 

• That policies/procedures are amended. 
 

• That a briefing/information note be issued. 
 

• That an apology be given. 
 

• That the Member is censured in writing and a copy of the letter is 
published on the Council’s website.  
 

• Take no action where it is not considered appropriate in the 
circumstances to impose a sanction. 

  
11.9 The Monitoring Officer will inform the complainant and the Member of the 

outcome from the Sub-Committee hearing in writing within 5 working days. 
  
11.10 The findings and decision of the Sub-Committee will be also be available on 

the Council’s website and copies will be supplied to the Chief Executive, 
Leaders of all the political Groups and the Group Whips. 

  
11.11 Where the matter relates to a Parish or Town Councillor, the Clerk of that 

Council will be informed of the outcome of a Hearing. 
  
12. Appeals 
  
12.1 There is no right of appeal for the complainant or Member against a decision 

of the Monitoring Officer, Consideration Sub-Committee or Hearing Sub-
Committee. 

  
12.2 If the complainant feels that the Council has failed to deal with their complaint 

properly, they can make a complaint to the Local Government Ombudsman. 
  
13. Reports 
  
13.1 A quarterly report will be presented to meetings of the Standards Committee 

on the complaints received and how they were dealt with. An annual report 
will also be submitted to Full Council with a summary of all Standards 
Complaints.   

  
14. Data Protection 
  
14.1 Complaints will be handled in the strictest confidence at all times. We will 

ensure that any information received as part of the handling of the complaint 

Page 65



25 March 2015 

is disclosed only to those who can demonstrate a valid need to know it. 
However, when a complaint is considered at a Standards Committee Hearing 
then any information will be dealt with in accordance with the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules in the Council’s Constitution. 

  

14.2 Complaints records will be stored safely and securely.  
  

 
  

Page 66



 
 

 
Report of:   The Monitoring Officer/Director of Legal and  
    Governance 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Date:    12 January 2017 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject: Review of the Procedure for Dealing with Standards 

Complaints 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report:  Dave Ross, Democratic Services - 0114 273 5033 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  
 
The Procedure for Dealing with Standards Complaints was approved by Full 
Council on 25 March 2015 following a recommendation from the former 
Standards Committee. The Procedure has been reviewed in the light of the 
experience of dealing with complaints over the last 14 months. 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendations: That the Committee: 
 

(a) Comments on the draft revised Procedure for Dealing with Standards 
Complaints; 
 

(b) With the inclusion of any additional revisions arising from the meeting, 
recommends to Full Council the adoption of the revised Procedure and 
that the Constitution is amended accordingly; 
 

(c) Refers the revised Procedure to the Parish and Town Councils for 
consideration and adoption; and 
 

(d) Requests the Director of Legal and Governance to review the Procedure 
annually and submit a report to this Committee on any proposed changes. 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers:  None  
 

 
Category of Report: OPEN 
   

 
Audit and Standards 
Committee Report 

Agenda Item 8

Page 67



Statutory and Council Policy Checklist 
 

Financial Implications 
 

NO 

Legal Implications 
 

YES Cleared by: Gillian Duckworth 
 

Equality of Opportunity Implications 

NO 
 

Tackling Health Inequalities Implications 
 

NO 
 

Human rights Implications 
 

NO 
 

Environmental and Sustainability implications 
 

NO 
 

Economic impact 
 

NO 
 

Community safety implications 
 

NO 
 

Human resources implications 
 

NO 
 

Property implications 
 

NO 
 

Area(s) affected 
 

None 
 

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?    

YES 
 

Press release 
 

NO 
 

Page 68



REVIEW OF THE PROCEDURE FOR DEALING WITH STANDARDS 
COMPLAINTS 
 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION 
  
1.1 Following a recent review, a number of revisions are proposed to the 

Procedure for Dealing with Complaints Regarding City, Parish and Town 
Councillors and Co-opted Members. 

  
2.0 BACKGROUND 
  
2.1 The current Procedure was adopted by Full Council on 25 March 2015, 

following a recommendation from the former Standards Committee at its 
meeting on 22 January 2015. The main changes were:- 

  
 • Having one Procedure for City, Parish and Town Councils and Co-

opted Members. 
 • Introducing a complaint form. 
 • Asking the Member to submit a statement of fact in response to 

the complaint to assist with the assessment. 
 • The Leader of the relevant political Group, Group Whip and Chair 

of the Audit and Standards Committee are informed that a 
complaint has been received. Where a complaint relates to a 
Parish or Town Council, the Clerk is also informed. 

 • Where necessary, seeking or clarifying information from both 
parties earlier in the process. 

 • Including timescales for each stage of the process. 
 • Clarifying the process for an investigation. 
 • Having a Consideration Sub- Committee to consider investigation 

reports. This is to build in more Member involvement in the 
process. 

 • A Hearing Sub-Committee comprising three Councillors and one 
non-voting co-opted Independent Member. 

 • Providing both parties with information on the pre-hearing process 
and procedure at a hearing. 

 • There is no right of appeal to the Council at any stage of the 
process but the complainant can contact the Local Government 
Ombudsman if they feel that we have not dealt with their complaint 
properly. 

  
2.2 The Council appointed three Independent Persons (Stuart Carvell, 

Marvyn Moore and David Waxman) to assist the Monitoring Officer and 
the Committee in considering complaints. 

  
2.3 The first stage of the Procedure is the assessment of the complaint. 

Following consultation with the Independent Person, the Monitoring 
Officer will consider if the allegation constitutes a potential breach of the 
Code of Conduct and take one of the following courses of action:- 

  
  
  

Page 69



 1) Take no action or 
 2) Take other action through informal resolution or 
 3) Refer the matter for investigation 
  
2.2 As part of the consideration of the Revised Procedure, the Standards 

Committee requested that the operation of the Procedure was reviewed 
in a year’s time. 

  
3.0 REVIEW OF PROCEDURE 
  
3.1 Since the introduction of the new Procedure, 27 formal complaints have 

been considered and their outcome is as follows:- 
  
 Take no action – 16 
 Take other action through informal resolution - 3 
 Referred for Investigation - 0 
  
 6 complaints are still to be concluded and 2 complaints were not 

accepted due to a significant amount of time having passed since the 
alleged incidents took place. 

  
3.2 The Procedure has been reviewed in light of the learning and experience 

of dealing with those complaints over the last 14 months and the views of 
the three Independent Persons and the Clerks to the Parish and Town 
Councils were also sought. 

  
3.3 Generally the Procedure has worked well but a number of revisions are 

proposed:- 
  
 • Clarifying the process for withdrawing a complaint. 
 • Including an explanation for the possible reasons for taking no 

action, seeking informal resolution and referring a complaint for 
investigation. 

 • If an informal resolution cannot be agreed then the Monitoring 
Officer, in consultation with the Independent Person, will reassess 
the complaint, taking into consideration the reasons why informal 
resolution has not been agreed. 

 • It is expected that the Monitoring Officer will refer only the most 
serious potential breaches for investigation or where the Member 
is not willing to accept an informal resolution or fundamentally 
disputes or does not accept the allegations in the complaint. 

  
3.4 Members are asked to comment on the draft revised Procedure that is 

appended to the report. 
  
3.5 Any complaints submitted before any revisions are approved by Full 

Council will be considered under the existing Procedure. 
  
  
  
  
  

Page 70



4.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
  
4.1 As the Procedure is included in the Constitution, any changes would 

require approval at Full Council. The revised Procedure would also need 
to be approved by the Parish and Town Councils. 

  
5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
  
5.1 There are no financial implications. 
  
6.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
6.1 That the Committee:- 
  
 (a) Comments on the draft revised Procedure for Dealing with 

Standards Complaints; 
   
 (b) With the inclusion of any additional revisions arising from the 

meeting, recommends to Full Council the adoption of the revised 
Procedure and that the Constitution is amended accordingly; 

   
 (c) Refers the revised Procedure to the Parish and Town Councils for 

consideration and adoption; and 
   
 (d) Requests the Director of Legal and Governance to review the 

Procedure annually and submit a report to this Committee on any 
proposed changes. 

  
  
 Gillian Duckworth 
 Monitoring Officer/Director of Legal and Governance 

 

Page 71



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



Revised draft January 2017 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
 
PROCEDURE FOR DEALING WITH COMPLAINTS REGARDING CITY, PARISH 
AND TOWN COUNCILLORS AND CO-OPTED MEMBERS 
  
1. Introduction 
  
1.1 Under the Localism Act 2011, the Council has a duty to promote and 

maintain high standards of conduct for its elected and co-opted members and 
have arrangements in place to deal with complaints. 

  
1.2 This Procedure sets out how the Council will deal with a complaint alleging a 

breach of the Members’ Code of Conduct by:-  
  
 • Sheffield City Councillors   
 • Voting and non-voting co-opted members of the Council 
 • Bradfield Parish Councillors 
 • Ecclesfield Parish Councillors 
 • Stocksbridge Town Councillors 
  
 (In this Procedure the term ‘Member’ is used to describe a Councillor or Co-

opted Member) 
  
1.3 In dealing with complaints we will be fair to both the complainant and 

Member and progress matters in accordance with the timescales set out in 
the Procedure. Complaints will be handled in the strictest confidence at all 
times. 

  
2. Monitoring Officer 
  
2.1 Gillian Duckworth, Director of Legal and Governance, is the Council’s 

Monitoring Officer. This is a statutory role, responsible for ensuring that the 
Council, its Members and officers carry out their functions in a lawful and 
ethical manner. The role includes supporting the Audit and Standards 
Committee and the three Independent Persons in dealing with complaints 
alleging a breach of the Members’ Code of Conduct. 

  
3. Independent Persons 
  
3.1 The Council appoints Independent Persons from outside the Council to assist 

the Monitoring Officer and the Audit and Standards Committee in considering 
complaints. Sheffield currently has appointed three Independent Persons - 
Stuart Carvell, Marvyn Moore and David Waxman. 

  
3.2 The Independent Person must be consulted at various stages in the 

complaints process and also before the Audit and Standards Committee 
makes a finding as to whether a member has failed to comply with the Code 
of Conduct and decides on action to be taken in respect of a Member. 

  
  
  

Page 73



Revised draft January 2017 

4. Making a Complaint/Withdrawing a Complaint 
  
4.1 Complaints alleging a breach of the Members’ Code of Conduct should be 

made in writing using the complaint form and sent to Gillian Duckworth, 
Monitoring Officer, Sheffield City Council, Town Hall, Sheffield S1 2HH or 
email gillian.duckworth@sheffield.gov.uk. The complaint form is available 
from:- 

  
 • Website -  www.sheffield.gov.uk/your-city-council/council-

meetings/audit-and-standards-committee 
 • Email - committee@sheffield.gov.uk 
 • Phone -  0114 273 5033 
  
4.2 If you need advice or assistance in submitting a complaint please contact 

Dave Ross in Democratic Services (email dave.ross@sheffield.gov.uk or 
phone 0114 273 5033). 

  
4.3 Details of the complaint, including the name of the complainant, will be 

shared with the Member. The complainant can request on the complaint form 
that their identity is kept confidential. Requests for confidentiality will be 
considered by the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Independent 
Person and the complainant will be informed in writing of the outcome 

  
4.4 Anonymous complaints will not be considered. 
  
4.5 The complainant can withdraw their complaint at any time by informing the 

Monitoring Officer in writing. The Monitoring Officer will confirm this in writing 
with the complaint within 5 working days and also inform the Member that the 
complaint has been withdrawn. 

  
4.6 Where a complaint has been withdrawn, the Monitoring Officer reserves the 

right to pursue the issues in the complaint. 
  
5.0 Acknowledging the Complaint/Informing the Member 
  
5.1 The Monitoring Officer will acknowledge receipt of the complaint in writing 

within 5 working days, with details of how the complaint will be dealt with and 
providing a copy of this Procedure and the Code of Conduct. If necessary, 
the Monitoring Officer will clarify any matters with the complainant as soon as 
possible before the Member is informed. 

  
5.2 The Member will be informed in writing within 5 working days, subject to 

paragraph 5.1, that a complaint has been made about them. This will include 
the name of the complainant (unless the Monitoring Officer has agreed to the 
complainant’s request that their name is kept confidential) and details of the 
complaint. They will also receive a copy of this Procedure and the Code of 
Conduct. To assist the Monitoring Officer in assessing the complaint, the 
Member will be invited to submit within 10 working days a written statement 
of fact in response to the complaint. 

  
5.3 The Monitoring Officer will also inform the Leader of the relevant political 

Group, Group Whip and Chair of the Audit and Standards Committee that a 

Page 74



Revised draft January 2017 

complaint has been received and provide a summary of the complaint. 
  
5.4 Where a complaint relates to a Parish or Town Councillor, the Monitoring 

Officer will also inform the Clerk of that Council of the name of the Member 
and details of the complaint. The Clerk will also be kept informed of the 
progress and the outcome of the complaint. 

  
6. Assessment by the Monitoring Officer 
  
6.1 Before assessment of the complaint, it may be necessary for the Monitoring 

Officer to request further information or clarification from the complainant 
and/or Member and, where necessary, obtain other available information, 
such as the minutes of a meeting. 

  
6.2 The Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Independent Person, will 

consider (a) the complaint, any remedy sought by the complainant, any 
written statement of fact submitted by the Member and any other information 
obtained, (b) whether the member was acting in their official capacity and 
that the Code of Conduct does apply and (c) if the allegation constitutes a 
potential breach of the Code of Conduct and then take one of the following 
courses of action:- 

  
 • Take no action or 
 • Take other action through informal resolution or 
 • Refer the matter for investigation 
  
6.3 The complainant and the Member will be informed in writing within 5 working 

days of the outcome and the reasons for the decision. 
  
6.4 The Monitoring Officer will also inform the Leader of the relevant political 

Group, Group Whip and Chair of the Audit and Standards Committee of the 
decision. Where a complaint relates to a Parish or Town Councillor, the 
Monitoring Officer will also inform the Clerk of that Council. 

  
6.5 It is likely that no action will be taken where:- 
  

• A significant amount of time has elapsed since the events which 
are the subject of the complaint. 

 

• The allegation relates to a cultural or recurring issue relating to 
standards within the Council.  
 

• The matter should be dealt with by some other method, e.g. police 
investigation. 
 

• Complaints have been made about the Member relating to similar 
issues that have previously been dealt with through this Procedure. 
 

• The complaint appears to be trivial, vexatious, tit for tat or is part of 
a series of complaints from the complainant. 
 

Page 75



Revised draft January 2017 

• The conduct occurred during political debate or could be regarded 
as a political expression of views or opinion. 

  
6.6 Informal resolution may be the simplest and most cost effective way of 

resolving the complaint and may be appropriate where: 
  
 • The Monitoring Officer considers that this is the most effective way of 

resolving the matter to the complainant’s satisfaction; 
  
 • The Member appears to have a poor understanding of the Code of 

Conduct and/or related Council procedures;  
  
 • The conduct complained of appears to be a symptom of wider 

underlying conflicts which, if unresolved, are likely to lead to further 
misconduct or allegations of misconduct;  

  
 • The conduct complained of appears to the Monitoring Officer not to 

require a formal sanction; 
 

 • The complaint appears to reveal a lack of guidance, protocols and 
procedures within the District or Parish Council; 

  
 • The complaint consists of allegations and retaliatory allegations 

between councillors; 
 • The complaint consists of allegations about how formal meetings are 

conducted; and 
  
 • The conduct complained of may be due to misleading, unclear or 

misunderstood advice from officers. 
  
6.7 It is expected that the Monitoring Officer will refer only the most serious 

potential breaches for investigation or where the Member is not willing to 
accept an informal resolution or fundamentally disputes or does not accept 
the allegations in the complaint. 

  
6.8 Where a complaint is not referred for investigation, the Monitoring Officer will 

seek to deal with the matter within 8 weeks. 
  
7. Take Other Action Through Informal Resolution 
  
7.1 Where the Monitoring Officer has decided to take other action this will seek to 

resolve the complaint informally and without determining if an actual breach 
of the Code has taken place. Both the complainant and Member will have to 
agree to the outcome of any informal resolution. 

  
7.2 The Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Independent Person, may 

take any of the following actions:- 
  
 • Take such steps as they think appropriate to prevent a future potential 

breach of the Code including training, guidance and introducing or 
amending policies/protocols. 

Page 76



Revised draft January 2017 

  
 • Ask the Whips to address the issue raised within their political parties 

or with an individual Member. 
  
 • Mediate between the parties involved to resolve the issues. 
  
 • Seek an apology from the Member. 
  
 • Any other action capable of resolving the complaint. 
  
7.3 Where it has not been possible to agree an informal resolution, the 

Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Independent Person, will reassess 
the complaint, taking into consideration the reasons why informal resolution 
has not been agreed. The complainant and Member will be informed of the 
outcome within 5 working days. 

  
7.4 The Chair of the Audit and Standards Committee and relevant Group Leader 

and Group Whip will also be informed of the outcome. Where a complaint 
relates to a Parish or Town Councillor, the Monitoring Officer will also inform 
the Clerk of that Council. 

  
8. Investigation 
  
8.1 If a complaint has been referred for investigation, the Monitoring Officer, in 

consultation with the Independent Person, will appoint a person to undertake 
the investigation and this may be either a Council Officer or an outside agent, 
depending on the complexity and subject of the complaint. 

  
8.2 The Investigating Officer will inform the complainant and Member of the 

process and proposed timescale of the investigation. The investigation may 
involve interviewing both parties and possibly other witnesses, together with 
reviewing any relevant documentation or paperwork.  

  
8.3 The Investigating Officer will prepare a draft report on the outcome of the 

investigation and provide the complainant and Member with a copy for review 
and comment. 

  
8.4 The Investigating Officer will submit a final version of the report to the 

Monitoring Officer that will make a finding that either (a) there has been a 
failure to comply with the Code of Conduct or (b) there has not been a failure 
to comply with the Code of Conduct. The final report will also be sent to the 
complainant and Member. 

  
8.5 The Monitoring Officer will submit the Investigating Officer’s report to the 

Consideration Sub-Committee. 
  
8.6 An investigation will be completed within 12 weeks of a referral by the 

Monitoring Officer. The Consideration Sub-Committee will meet within one 
month of the final report being submitted to the Monitoring Officer. 

  
  

Page 77



Revised draft January 2017 

9. Consideration Sub-Committee 
  
9.1 The Consideration Sub-Committee comprises 3 Councillors and 1 non-voting 

co-opted Independent Member. 
  
9.2 The Sub-Committee will consider the Investigating Officer’s report and, after 

taking the views of the Independent Person into account, can:- 
  
 (a) take no action where there is no evidence of a failure to comply with the 

Code of Conduct; or  
  
 (b) take no action where there is no evidence of a failure to comply with the 

Code of Conduct but make a recommendation to the authority with a view to 
promoting and maintaining high conduct of standards in general (e.g. 
proposed changes to internal procedures or training for Members); or 

  
 (c) ask the Monitoring Officer, where possible, to seek a local resolution to 

the complaint; or 
  
 (d) refer the matter to an Audit and Standards Committee Hearing Sub-

Committee. 
  
9.3 The complainant and Member will be informed in writing within 5 working 

days of the outcome and the reasons for the decision. 
  
10. Local Resolution 
  
10.1 Where the investigation finds evidence of failure to comply with the Code of 

Conduct, the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Independent Person, 
may attempt a local resolution, avoiding the necessity of a hearing, and take 
any of the following actions:- 

  
 • Take such steps as they think appropriate to prevent a future potential 

breach of the Code including training, guidance and introducing or 
amending policies/protocols. 
 

• Ask the Whips to address the issue raised within their political parties 
or with an individual Member. 
 

• Mediate between the parties involved to resolve the issues. 
 

• Seek an apology from the Member 
 

• Any other action capable of resolving the complaint 
 

10.2 Both the complainant and Member will have to agree to the outcome of any 
local resolution. 

  
10.3 The Monitoring Officer will inform the complainant and Member in writing 

within 5 working days of the outcome of any agreed local resolution. 
  

Page 78



Revised draft January 2017 

10.4 If a local resolution has not been possible, the Monitoring Officer, in 
consultation with the Independent Person and Chair of the Audit and 
Standards Committee, will refer the matter to a the Hearing Sub-Committee 
and inform the complainant and Member in writing within 5 working days. 

  

11. Hearing Sub-Committee 
  
11.1 The Hearing Sub-Committee comprises 3 Councillors and 1 non-voting co-

opted Independent Member. 
  

11.2 The Sub-Committee will meet within two months of a referral by the 
Consideration Sub-Committee to consider the allegation and Investigating 
Officer’s report and make clear findings as to the facts of the matter and 
whether a breach of the Code of Conduct has occurred. 

  
11.3 The Sub-Committee will meet in public unless it decides that all or part of the 

meeting should be held in private in accordance with the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules in the Council’s Constitution. 

  
11.4 In advance of the Hearing, there will be a pre-hearing process to allow 

matters at the Hearing to be dealt with more fairly and economically. 
  
11.5 The complainant and Member will be given the opportunity to attend the 

Hearing and present witnesses. The Monitoring Officer, Investigating Officer 
and Independent Person will also attend. The procedure at the Hearing will 
include:- 

  
 • Making findings of fact 
 • Deciding if there has been a breach of the Code of Conduct 
 • Consider the remedies/sanctions available if there is a finding that the 

Member has breached of the Code of Conduct 
  
11.6 Full details of the pre-hearing and hearing process are set out in the 

Procedure at Hearings. The Member and complainant will be provided with a 
copy of the Procedure. 

  
11.7 A Finding of No Breach of the Code of Conduct 
  
11.7.1 If the Sub-Committee finds that the Member did not breach the Code of 

Conduct no further action will be taken in respect of the complaint. However, 
the Sub-Committee can make a recommendation to the authority with a view 
to promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct in general (e.g. 
proposed changes to internal procedures or training for Members). 

  
11.8 A Finding of a Breach of the Code of Conduct 
  
11.8.1 If the Sub-Committee finds that a breach of the Code of Conduct has 

occurred they may make any of the following recommendations and may 
specify to whom they wish them to be directed:- 

  
 • Recommending to the Member’s Group Leader (or in the case of un-

grouped members, recommend to Council or to Committees) that he/she 

Page 79



Revised draft January 2017 

be removed from any or all Committees or Sub-Committees of the 
Council or Shadow Portfolio responsibilities. 
 

• Recommending to the Leader of the Council that the member be removed 
from the Cabinet, or removed from particular Portfolio responsibilities. 
 

• Instructing the Monitoring Officer to arrange training for the member. 
 

• That policies/procedures are amended. 
 

• That a briefing/information note be issued. 
 

• That an apology be given. 
 

• That the Member is censured in writing and a copy of the letter is 
published on the Council’s website.  
 

• Take no action where it is not considered appropriate in the 
circumstances to impose a sanction. 

  
11.9 The Monitoring Officer will inform the complainant and the Member of the 

outcome from the Sub-Committee hearing in writing within 5 working days. 
  
11.10 The findings and decision of the Sub-Committee will be also be available on 

the Council’s website and copies will be supplied to the Chief Executive, 
Leaders of all the political Groups and the Group Whips. 

  
11.11 Where the matter relates to a Parish or Town Councillor, the Clerk of that 

Council will be informed of the outcome of a Hearing. 
  
12. Appeals 
  
12.1 There is no right of appeal for the complainant or Member against a decision 

of the Monitoring Officer, Consideration Sub-Committee or Hearing Sub-
Committee. 

  
12.2 If the complainant feels that the Council has failed to deal with their complaint 

properly, they can make a complaint to the Local Government Ombudsman 
(www.lgo.org.uk) 

  
13. Reports 
  
13.1 A report on the complaints received and how they were dealt with will be 

submitted to meetings of the Audit and Standards Committee twice a year. 
An annual report will also be submitted to Full Council with a summary of all 
Standards Complaints received and their outcome.   

  
14. Data Protection 
  
14.1 Complaints will be handled in the strictest confidence at all times. We will 

ensure that any information received as part of the handling of the complaint 
is disclosed only to those who can demonstrate a valid need to know it. 

Page 80



Revised draft January 2017 

However, when a complaint is considered at a Standards Committee Hearing 
then any information will be dealt with in accordance with the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules in the Council’s Constitution. 

  

14.2 Complaints records will be stored safely and securely. 
  

15. Review and Changes to the Procedure 
  

15.1 The Monitoring Officer will review the Procedure annually, in consultation 
with the Independent Persons, and submit a report on any proposed changes 
to the Audit and Standards Committee for consideration. In accordance with 
the Constitution, any changes will require final approval at Full Council. 

  

 
  
 

Page 81



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
Report of:   Director of Legal and Governance 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Date:    12 January 2017 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject: Review of the Members’ Code of Conduct 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report:  Dave Ross, Democratic Services 
_____________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  
 
The Members’ Code of Conduct was last reviewed in March 2015 as part of 
changes to the Procedure for Dealing with Standards Complaints and no 
changes were proposed at that time. 
 
Following a recent review, a number of minor changes are proposed. 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendations: 
 
That the Committee:- 
 
(a) Comments on the proposed minor changes to the Members’ Code 

of Conduct and considers if an further changes are required; and 
  
(b) With the inclusion of any additional revisions arising from the 

meeting, recommends to Full Council that the changes are 
approved and that the Constitution is amended accordingly. 

 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers: 
 

 
Category of Report: OPEN 
 
 
 

   

 
Audit and Standards 

Committee Report 

Agenda Item 9

Page 83



Statutory and Council Policy Checklist 
 

Financial Implications 
 

NO 

Legal Implications 
 

YES Cleared by: Gill Duckworth 
 

Equality of Opportunity Implications 

NO 

Tackling Health Inequalities Implications 
 

NO 
 

Human rights Implications 
 

NO: 
 

Environmental and Sustainability implications 
 

NO 
 

Economic impact 
 

NO 
 

Community safety implications 
 

NO 
 

Human resources implications 
 

NO 
 

Property implications 
 

NO 
 

Area(s) affected 
 

None 
 

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?    

YES 
 

Press release 
 

NO 
 

Page 84



 
REVIEW OF THE MEMBERS’ CODE OF CONDUCT 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION 
  
1.1 Following a recent review, a number of minor changes are proposed to 

the Members’ Code of Conduct. 
  
2.0 BACKGROUND 
  
2.1 The Members’ Code of Conduct sets out the standards which are 

required of all members of the authority in carrying out their duties and in 
their relationships with the Council and its officers and applies to Elected 
Members and Co-opted Members. 

  
2.2 The Code of Conduct was last changed in June 2013 when the seven 

principles of public life were amended. The Code was also reviewed in 
March 2015 as part of changes to the Procedure for Dealing with 
Standards Complaints and no changes were proposed at that time. 

  
3.0 PROPOSED CHANGES 
  
3.1 The only proposed changes relate to the Equalities section. Paragraph 

4.1 has been updated to reflect changes in legislation that have been 
repealed and incorporated into the Equality Act 2010. Paragraph 4.3 has 
also been updated to reflect changes to the titles of Council Policy 
documents. The proposed amendments are set out in the Appendix to 
the report. 

  
3.2 It is intended that the Code and related Protocols will be reviewed 

annually. 
  
4.0 LEGAL AND FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
  
4.1 As the Code of Conduct is included in the Constitution, any changes 

would require approval at Full Council. 
  
4.2 There are no financial implications. 
  
5.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
5.1 That the Committee:- 
  
 (a) Comments on the proposed minor changes to the Members’ Code 

of Conduct and considers if an further changes are required; and 
   
 (b) With the inclusion of any additional revisions arising from the 

meeting, recommends to Full Council that the changes are 
approved and that the Constitution is amended accordingly. 

  
  
 Gillian Duckworth 
 Monitoring Officer and Director of Legal and Governance 
 

Page 85



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 5 – Members’ Code of Conduct (Revised June 2013) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
  

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL – MEMBERS’ CODE OF CONDUCT  
 
Introduction 
 
This Code applies to members of this authority when you act in your role as a 
Member and it is your responsibility to comply with the provisions of this Code. 
Members include all Elected Members and co-opted members. 
 
The Code sets out the standards which are required of all members of the 
authority in carrying out their duties, and in their relationships with the Council 
and its officers.   
 
Members are a representative of this authority and the public will view you as 
such, therefore your actions impact on how the authority as a whole is viewed 
and your actions can have both positive and negative impacts on the 
authority.  
 
This Code is based upon the following principles of public life which each 
member should comply with: 
 
Selflessness 
Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest. 
 
Integrity 
Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any 
obligation to people or organisations that might try inappropriately to 
influence them in their work. They should not act or take decisions in 
order to gain financial or other material benefits for themselves, their 
family, or their friends. They must declare and resolve any interests and 
relationships. 

 
Objectivity 
Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and 
on merit, using the best evidence and without discrimination or bias. 

 
Accountability 
Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and 
actions and must submit themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this. 

 
Openness 
Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and 
transparent manner. Information should not be withheld from the public 
unless there are clear and lawful reasons for so doing. 

 
Honesty 
Holders of public office should be truthful.  

 
  

Page 87



Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 5 – Members’ Code of Conduct (Revised June 2013) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
  

Leadership 
Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own 
behaviour. They should actively promote and robustly support the 
principles and be willing to challenge poor behaviour wherever it occurs. 

 
This Code does not cover matters under the Localism Act 2011 where 
criminal sanctions will apply. 
 

 
1. General Obligations 

 
1.1 When acting in your role as a member of the authority you: 
 

(a) Must treat others with respect. 
 
(b) Must not conduct yourself in a manner which is contrary to the 

Council’s duty to promote and maintain high standards of 
conduct of members. 

 
(c) Must not bully or intimidate any person 
 
(d) Must not disclose information given to you in confidence by 

anyone, or information acquired by you which you believe, or 
ought reasonably to be aware, is of a confidential nature, except 
where - 
 
(i) You have the consent of a person authorised to give it; 
(ii) You are required by law to do so; 
(iii) The disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of 

obtaining professional legal advice provided that the third 
party agrees not to disclose the information to any other 
person; or 

(iv) The disclosure is –  
 

 (A) reasonable and in the public interest;  
 (B) made in good faith and in compliance with the 
reasonable requirements of the authority; and 

 (C) you have consulted the Monitoring Officer prior to its 
release. 

 
(e) Must not prevent another person from gaining access to 

information to which that person is entitled by law.  
 

(f) Must not conduct yourself in a manner which would reasonably 
be regarded as bringing your authority into disrepute. 
 

(g) Must not use your position to improperly confer or secure an 
advantage or disadvantage to yourself or any other person. 

Page 88



Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 5 – Members’ Code of Conduct (Revised June 2013) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
  

(h)  Must be clear when communicating with the media or speaking 
in public that you do not give the impression you are acting in an 
official capacity when you are acting in a personal capacity. 

(i) Must comply with the Protocol for Member/Officer Relations and 
respect the impartiality and integrity of the authority’s statutory 
officers and its other employees. 

 
1.2 When using or authorising the use by others of the resources of the 

authority you:- 
 

(a) Must act in accordance with the authority’s reasonable 
requirements including the requirements of the authority’s ICT 
policy and the policies listed at appendix A, copies of which have 
been provided to you and which you are deemed to have read; 

 
(b) Must make sure that such resources are not used improperly for 

political purposes (including party political purposes); and 
 

(c) Must have regard to any applicable Code of Publicity and take 
into account the guidance issued to Members on the use of 
social media. 

 
2. Interests 
 
2.1.  Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) 

You must - 

(a)   comply with the statutory requirements to register, disclose and 
withdraw (to include leaving the room) from participating in 
respect of any matter in which you have a DPI.  

(b)     ensure that your register of interests is kept up to date at least 
annually. 

(c)     make a verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any 
DPI at any meeting at which you are present at which an item of 
business which affects or relates to the subject matter of that 
interest is under consideration, at or before the consideration of 
the item of business or as soon as the interest becomes 
apparent. 

  

Page 89



Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 5 – Members’ Code of Conduct (Revised June 2013) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
  

2.2  Other Interests 

2.2.1   In addition to the requirements relating to DPIs, if you attend a 
meeting at which any item of business is to be considered and you 
are aware that you have a personal interest in the matter which does 
not amount to a DPI you must make verbal declaration of the 
existence and nature of that interest at or before the consideration of 
the item of business or as soon as the interest becomes apparent. 

2.2.2     You have a personal interest where – 

(a)   a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be 
regarded as affecting the well-being or financial standing 
(including interests in land and easements over land) of you or 
a member of your family or a person or an organisation with 
whom you have a close association to a greater extent than it 
would affect the majority of the Council Tax payers, ratepayers 
or inhabitants of the ward or electoral area for which you have 
been elected or otherwise of the authority’s administrative 
area, or 

 
(b)    it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests that are 

defined as DPIs but are in respect of a member of your family 
(other than a partner) or a person with whom you have a close 
association. 

(“Meeting” means any meeting organised by or on behalf of the 
authority, including – 

• any meeting of the Council, or a Committee or Sub-Committee of 
Council; 

• any meeting of the Cabinet and any Committee of the Cabinet; 
• in taking a decision as a Ward Councillor or as a Member of the 

Cabinet.) 
 

(Note: A request for a dispensation to participate in the business of the 
authority where a Member has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest must 
be submitted in writing to the Monitoring Officer in accordance with the 
guidance issued to Members on Declarations of Interests.) 

2.3. Gifts and Hospitality 

2.3.1  You must, within 28 days of receipt, notify the Monitoring Officer in 
writing of any gift, benefit or hospitality with a value in excess of £50 
which you have accepted as a member from any person or body other 
than the authority. 

Page 90



Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 5 – Members’ Code of Conduct (Revised June 2013) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
  

2.3.2     The Monitoring Officer will place your notification on a public register 
of gifts and hospitality. 

2.3.3     This duty to notify the Monitoring Officer does not apply where the gift 
is accepted on behalf of the Council and does not apply to the role of 
Lord Mayor. 

3. Bias 
 
3.1. Where you have been involved in campaigning in your political role on 

an issue which does not impact on your personal and/or professional 
life you are not prohibited from participating in a decision in your 
political role as member. However, you must not place yourself under 
any financial or other obligation to outside individuals or organisations 
that might seek to influence you in the performance of your official 
duties. 

 
3.2. When making a decision, you must consider the matter with an open 

mind and on the facts before the meeting at which the decision is to be 
taken. 

 
4. Equalities  
 
4.1 Members must ensure that they adhere to all related legal 

requirements, such as the Equality Act 2010 and the Human Rights Act 
1998.  

 
4.2  Members must promote equality and inclusion by providing an 

environment free from harassment, discrimination, and victimisation 
and bullying and by treating people with respect, regardless of their 
age, disability, gender, race, religion/ belief, sexual orientation or 
marriage/ civil partnership status. 
 

4.3  Members must act in accordance with the Council’s Equality, Diversity 
and Inclusion Policy,  and Dignity and Respect at Work Policy. 

 
4.4  Members must have regard to the Public Sector Equality Duty 

contained in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 to:  

• Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation  
• Advance equality of opportunity  
• Foster good relations. 

Page 91



Sheffield City Council – Constitution 
Part 5 – Members’ Code of Conduct (Revised June 2013) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
  

APPENDIX A 
 

LIST OF POLICIES 
 

• Sheffield City Council Electronic Communications Policy 
 

• Members’ ICT Usage Policy 
 

 

Page 92



 
 

 
Report of:   Director of Legal and Governance 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Date:    12 January 2017 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject:   Work Programme 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report:  Dave Ross, Democratic Services 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  
 
The report provides details of an outline work programme for the Committee 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendations: 
 
That the Committee:- 
 
(a) considers the Work Programme and identifies any further items for inclusion; 

and 
 

(b) approves the work programme. 
 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers:  None 
 

 
Category of Report: OPEN 
 
 
 
 

 
 
   

 
Audit and Standards 

Committee Report 

 

Agenda Item 10

Page 93



Statutory and Council Policy Checklist 
 

Financial Implications 
 

NO Cleared by: 
 

Legal Implications 
 

NO Cleared by: 
 

Equality of Opportunity Implications 

NO Cleared by: 
 

Tackling Health Inequalities Implications 
 

NO 
 

Human rights Implications 
 

NO: 
 

Environmental and Sustainability implications 
 

NO 
 

Economic impact 
 

NO 
 

Community safety implications 
 

NO 
 

Human resources implications 
 

NO 
 

Property implications 
 

NO 
 

Area(s) affected 
 

NONE 
 

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?    

NO 
 

Press release 
 

NO 
 

Page 94



REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF 
LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE 

AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE  
12 JANUARY 2017 

  
  
WORK PROGRAMME 
 
1. Purpose of Report 
  
1.1 To consider an outline work programme for the Committee. 
  
2. Work Programme 
  
2.1 It is intended that there will be at least five meetings of the Committee during the year 

with three additional meetings arranged if required. The work programme includes 
some items which are dealt with at certain times of the year to meet statutory 
deadlines, such as the Annual Governance Report and Statement of Accounts, and 
other items requested by the Committee. In addition, it also now includes standards’ 
related matters such as a regular report providing an update on the outcome of 
Standards complaints. 

  
2.2 An outline programme is attached and Members are asked to identify any further 

items for inclusion. 
  
3. Recommendation 
  
3.1 That the Committee:- 
  
 (a)  considers the Work Programme and identifies any further items for inclusion; 

and 
   
 (b) approves the work programme. 
   
  
 Gillian Duckworth 
 Director of Legal and Governance 

 
  

Page 95



Date  Item Author 

   

16 February 
2017 

(Additional meeting if required)  

   

9 March 2017 (Additional meeting if required)  

   

27 April 2017 Internal Audit Plan 2017/18 Kayleigh Inman (Senior 
Finance Manager) 

 International Auditing Standards – Compliance 
with Internal Control/Counter Fraud  

Dave Phillips (Head of 
Strategic Finance) 

 Certification of Claims and Returns Annual 
Report 2015/16 

Alison Ormston (KPMG) 

 External Audit Plan 2016/17 Alison Ormston (KPMG) 

 Annual Audit Fee Letter 2017/18 Alison Ormston (KPMG) 

 Update on Outcome Planning John Mothersole (Chief 
Executive) 

 Work Programme Dave Ross (Legal and 
Governance) 

   

13 July 2017 Summary of the Statement of Accounts Dave Phillips (Head of 
Strategic Finance) 

 Annual Governance Statement Gillian Duckworth 
(Director of Legal and 
Governance) 

 Progress on Audit Reports with a High Opinion Kayleigh Inman (Senior 
Finance Manager) 

 Audit and Standards Committee Annual Report Dave Ross (Legal and 
Governance) 

 Standards Complaints Update Dave Ross (Legal and 
Governance) 

 Work Programme Dave Ross (Legal and 
Governance) 

 

Page 96


	Agenda
	4 Declarations of Interest
	5 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	6 Progress on High Opinion Audit Reports
	High Opinion Audits

	7 Standards Complaints Update
	Appendix - Procedure for Dealing with Complaints

	8 Review of the Procedure for Dealing with Standards Complaints
	Appendix - Draft Revised Procedure for Dealing with Complaints

	9 Review of the Members' Code of Conduct
	Appendix - Members' Code of Conduct

	10 Work Programme

